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SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR
Register of Shareholders

Close of Register
For attending Annual General Meeting:
9 June 2014 to 11 June 2014

(both days inclusive)

For receiving proposed final dividend:
23 June 2014 to 24 June 2014

(both days inclusive)
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Annual General Meeting BRRBFRE
10:00 a.m. on 12 June 2014 at HR_ZE—MEA+H
Room 601-602, 6th Floor, EFTERIER
Top Glory Tower BB
262 Gloucester Road SRS S T E2625%
Causeway Bay Mg F) e 61
Hong Kong 601-602F
Dividend iR E
Interim dividend: HK8.8 cents per share FREARR S« EAR8.87E Il
Paid on 28 November 2013 ERZE—=F+—AZt+NBEN
Proposed final dividend: HK8.2 cents per share FR AR E - T8 2B
Payable on or about 31 July 2014 RZE—NF+ A =+—BagIRT
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Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) K&t 7 & ~ B
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HK$ million HKS million  Z&BEH
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Turnover & %58 3,596 +4.6%

Gross Profit EF 1,080 +1.7%

EBITDA 828 +6.0%

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 416 -5.6%
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Earnings per share (HK cents) &A% 2 F) (1) 45.0 -5.6%
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors’), | am
pleased to present to you the annual report of AMVIG Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or "AMVIG", together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Reporting Period”).

It has been a challenging year for the tobacco packaging industry in China.
The recent austerity measures imposed by the new leadership in China have
little effect on the consumption of cigarette products, albeit the sales of high

value cigarette brands did see a slight decline.

On the other hand, although it is generally expected that there will be
further consolidation in cigarette brands, a trend set into motion throughout
the last decade, the pace of which has slowed down. Under this situation it is

a challenge to seek good value acquisition projects.

Nevertheless, the Group has still been able to achieve mild growth in
turnover this year. The impact of reduction in overall average selling price
due to shift in product mix was mitigated through cost cutting measures and
productivity improvements. New machines have been installed to increase
the Group's capacities and production efficiencies. Although the Group
recorded a mild drop in profit attributable to owners of 5.6% during the
year, mainly due to increase in finance costs and tax expenses, the Group's
operating results in terms of EBITDA has increased by 6% when compared to
last year. | am heartened the Group has performed relatively well under the

situation and is well positioned to capture any future opportunities.
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EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s turnover was HK$3,762 million, an
increase of 4.6% as compared to last year. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$392 million in 2013, a decrease of 5.6% from HK$416
million in last year. Basic earnings per share were HK42.5 cents representing a

decrease of 5.6%.

The net cash inflows generated from operating activities for the Reporting

Period was approximately HK$822 million.

ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

AMVIG continued to commit resources towards sustainable development and
will work with the communities to contribute to the environment. During
2013, the Group has implemented a number of measures and programs to
reduce energy consumption, wastage and pollution. We are also committed

to promoting recycling in all our factories.

The Group encourages staff to reduce unnecessary printing and recycle
waste paper in order to save toner, paper and energy and hence reduce the
emissions of carbon dioxide. AMVIG has always emphasized work safety in all
plants. During the year, we have reported zero loss time injuries in all of our
plants which is encouraging. Going forward, we are going to raise the safety
standard to monitor “Near Recordable Injuries” which is aimed to prevent any
near miss injuries that may happen. Moreover, regular work and fire safety
trainings have been carried out during the year. Specialists were assigned to

ensure policies on safety and fire prevention is strictly observed.

During the vyear, the Group supported various charitable organizations
through donation of cash and daily necessities to help the needy. We have

also participated in tree planting activities to preserve our environment.
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OUTLOOK

The tobacco packaging industry in China has been undergoing changes
in the last couple of years. We expect the industry will continue to
consolidate, albeit at a slightly slower pace than expected. Those smaller
players with lesser resources may likely exit the market as they will lose their
competitiveness. The strategy adopted by the Group during the last couple

of years has borne fruit and established a firm foundation for future growth.

Our customers are our lifeblood. The Group is committed to focusing
on customers’ delight which is a key performance indicator to establish
the index for customers’ satisfaction. This will ensure our business can be

sustainable for the long term.

There is a general trend for most of the major tobacco companies to upgrade
their production facilities to improve their productivity and efficiencies. In
this regard, we anticipate that their requirements on packaging materials
will be more demanding especially to feed in their high speed machines.
With our strong financial position and technical capabilities, the Group is
prepared to invest in new machines, processes and technologies to produce
high quality products to support the growth of our customers. In addition,
tobacco groups’ continues to upgrade the quality of its products to stay
ahead of the game. Our additional resources in research and development

will provide support to our customers to spearhead innovations.
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The Directors continue to be cautiously optimistic about the future
development of the Group. We expect the strong foundation we have built
over the last couple of years will yield positive results in the not too distant

future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my gratitude to our customers, business partners and other stakeholders
for the consistent support and trust in helping us to grow the business.
On behalf of the Board and management, | would like to reiterate our

commitment to create higher returns for our shareholders.

Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The management of AMVIG is pleased to report its financial results of 2013.
The Group has managed a growth in turnover for a fourth consecutive year

in 2013 through relentless marketing efforts.

On the other hand, the implementation of tendering by tobacco groups
(the "Tendering”) has continued to put pressure on the overall selling
prices of the Group's products. As such, the Group has focused on
reducing costs, improving efficiencies and increasing sales volume through
organic growth to cushion the drop in selling prices. During the year, the
management continued to implement its profit improvement programs,
which was launched a couple of years ago, to counteract the impact of
price reduction as a result of the Tendering. Operational indicators including
machine running speed, manning and wastage are constantly monitored.
Abnormalities are rectified on a timely basis. New machines were also
installed so as to increase productivity, reduce wastages and labor costs. The

overall impact on our gross profit margin was mild.

Overall expenses were also contained at a satisfactory level. The Group's
EBITDA increased by 6.0% from HK$828 million to HK$878 million. Profit
before tax also increased by 3.3% from HK$693 million to HK$716 million.

However, the expiry of the tax holiday for one of our plants has caused a rise
in taxation expenses. This together with increased share of profit by non-
controlling interests, led to a drop in profit attributable to owners of 5.6%

when compared to last year.

Although there was a mild drop in profit attributable to owners, the
operational cash flow of the Group remained strong. During the Reporting
Period, the net operational cash inflow of the Group amounted to HK$822

million.

Leveraged on the support of our customers and our major shareholder,
Amcor Limited, together with an effective management system and financial
discipline, we are well positioned to capture any future opportunities that

may arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group has recorded a slight growth in
turnover of 4.6% from HK$3,596 million to HK$3,762 million. The growth is

mainly attributed to the increase in sales volume.

Gross Profit

During the Reporting Period, the overall gross profit margin was 29.2%,
which represents a drop of 0.8 percentage points when compared to that of
last year. The slight drop in gross profit margin was the result of the ongoing
Tendering, the effect of which was mitigated by the Group’s efforts in cost
savings. Gross profit amount increased from HK$1,080 million to HKS$1,099

million.

Other Income

The increase in other income was mainly due to the recognition of exchange
gain on revaluing borrowings denominated in weakening Hong Kong
dollars against the strengthening Renminbi, being the Company’s functional

currency, during the Reporting Period.

Operating Costs

Operating costs (including administrative expenses, selling and distribution
costs and other operating expenses) increased slightly by HK$3.4 million
from HK$446.5 million in 2012 to HK$449.9 million in 2013. Operating costs
expressed as a percentage of turnover decreased from 12.4% in 2012 to
12.0% in the Reporting Period. The slight increase in operating costs was
mainly due to more efforts spent to expand marketing networks, resulted in
growth in turnover. The decrease in operating costs as a percentage of sales

was mainly due to management ability in containing costs.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased from HK$50.6 million in 2012 to HK$65.5 million for
the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly due to the increase in bank
borrowings as the Group's capital structure was rationalized in the second
half of 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Share of Profit of Associates

Share of profit of associates decreased from HKS51 million in 2012 to HKS41.5
million for the Reporting Period. The decline in share of profit of associates
was mainly due to drop in average selling prices of Nanjing Plant as a result

of the Tendering.

Taxation

The effective tax rate of the Group rose by 4.1 percentage points from 34.5%
in 2012 to 38.6% in 2013. This was mainly due to the expiry of the tax holiday
for the Dongguan KWG in 2013, and as a result it is subject to full statutory
tax rate of 25% instead of a reduced tax rate of 12.5% as in 2012. The effective
tax rate of the Group was higher than the PRC statutory enterprise income

tax rate of 25% due to non-tax deductibility of certain expenses incurred.

Profit attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$392.3 million during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of
5.6% from HKS$415.8 million in 2012. The decrease was mainly due to increase

in tax paid by Dongguan KWG when its tax holiday expired in 2013.

Segmental Information

During the Reporting Period, substantially all the turnover was derived from

printing of cigarette packages.

Dividends

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.2 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK9.2 cents) to be payable
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 24 June 2014. Subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company, the said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
around 31 July 2014.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2013, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$7,211
million and its total liabilities amounted to HK$3,041 million, representing an
increase of HKS$719 million and HKS$378 million, respectively as compared to
31 December 2012.
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Borrowings and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had gross interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HK$1,978 million (31 December 2012: HK$1,548 million),
representing an increase of HK$430 million over the last year end. The
increase of bank borrowings was due to the drawdown of unutilized banking

facilities.

All of the interest-bearing borrowings are unsecured, denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and bear interest at floating rates. The maturity profile of the

Group's gross interest-bearing borrowings is as follows:
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As of 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any committed but
undrawn banking facilities (31 December 2012: HK$420 million).

BERZEE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net assets of HK$4,171 million b’(\:;‘ —F+-A=1+—HB A"EEEH
& B ¥ E4,171,000000%8 7T - BEFERBEE
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Capital Structure

comprising non-current assets of HKS$3,856 million, net current assets of
HK$1,874 million and non-current liabilities of HK$1,559 million.
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Gearing ratio, measured by total interest-bearing borrowings as a percentage
of equity, increased from 40.4% as at 31 December 2012 to 47.4% as at
31 December 2013. Such increase was primarily due to the drawdown of =

unutilized banking facilities during the first half of 2013.
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Charges on the Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2013, assets with carrying amount of approximately HK$5
million (31 December 2012: HK$15 million) were pledged to banks in respect
of banking facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2012: Nil).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had capital commitments contracted but
not provided for in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
of HK$43 million (31 December 2012: HKS20 million).

Working Capital

The current ratio decreased from 256% at last year end to 226% at 31
December 2013 due to the reclassification of bank borrowings of HK$437
million from non-current liabilities at last year end to current liabilities as at

31 December 2013, since they have become due within one year.

Foreign Currency Exposure

During the Reporting Period, the Group's business transactions were mainly
denominated in Renminbi. All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Since the functional currency of the Company is Renminbi, the
Group has foreign currency exposure on Hong Kong dollars related to its

bank borrowings.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly

related to the underlying business of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 2,531 full time employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments and
employee share-based compensation benefits) amounted to approximately
HK$361 million (2012: HK$342 million) for the year. All full time salaried
employees, except for factory workers and contract employees, are being
paid on a monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus. Factory
workers are being remunerated based on a basic wage plus production
incentive. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related basis
within the general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system. In
addition to salaries, the Group provides staff benefits including medical
insurance and contributions to staff’s provident fund. Share options, awards
and bonuses are also available to employees of the Group at the discretion

of the Board and depending upon the financial performance of the Group.

PROSPECTS

With the support from our customers, we will strive to continue to improve
our performance. Additional machines will be installed to further promote
automation (and hence reduce labor costs), increase production capacities,

reduce wastages as well as improve productivity.

The management would like to take this opportunity to show our
appreciation to the great support of all the shareholders and customers. We
would also like to extend our gratitude to our Board members, management
team and all staff for their continuous dedication, commitment and
contribution to the development of the Group during this turbulent time.
The Group will strive to overcome the difficulties and challenges ahead to

create higher return to our shareholders.
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NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy

aged 63, was appointed as Executive Director in January 2005 and was
appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Group in April 2006. He had also
been the Chief Executive Officer overseeing the overall management of the
Group and development of corporate policies and strategies for development
of the business until 19 November 2009. With effect from 20 April 2010,
Mr. Chan was re-designated as Non-executive Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chan has been the Managing Director of Amcor Asia, part of Amcor Limited
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company, since 1995. Mr. Chan is
a Chartered Engineer (UK) with a Master of Business Administration degree
from University of Strathclyde in United Kingdom. He is a member of the
Chartered Engineer Institution (UK). Mr. Chan is also the Chairman of the

Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Chan Sai Wai
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Sai Wai

aged 56, was appointed as Executive Director in June 2006 and has become
the Vice Chairman of the Group since June 2007. Mr. Chan is the director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. He has been primarily responsible
for overall management and operation of World Grand Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries ("World Grand Group”). Mr. Chan has been engaging in
the trading of cigarette packaging business since 1982. He had been the
Assistant Managing Director of Yunnan Nine-Nine Colour Printing Co., Ltd.
since 1996 until he set up Kunming Plant in 2002. Mr. Chan is the elder
brother of Mr. Ng Sai Kit. Mr. Chan is also a member of Risk Management

Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Ge Su
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Mr. Ge Su

aged 57, was appointed as Executive Director in July 2009 and assumed
the position as President & Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 19 November 2009. Mr. Ge is currently the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ge has more than 20 years of experience in
the Chinese tobacco industry. He has a deep understanding and exposure to
the industry, and has developed a good working relationship with tobacco
monopoly authorities both at central and provincial levels. Mr. Ge assisted in
negotiation of three Leigh Mardon tobacco joint ventures in Qingdao, Beijing
and Kunming and sits on the respective boards in Qingdao and Beijing.
He has participated in many tobacco related projects including assisting a
multinational tobacco group in setting up a cigarette making joint venture
and developing a cigar cooperative project in China. Mr. Ge holds a degree
of Bachelor of Arts from Beijing Language Institute and a degree of Master of
Business Administration from China Europe Management Institute (currently
China Europe International Business School in Shanghai). Mr. Ge is also the
member of Risk Management Committee and Investment Committee of the

Company.
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Mr. Ng Sai Kit
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Mr. Ng Sai Kit

aged 51, was appointed as Executive Director in June 2006 and is the director
of World Grand Group. Mr. Ng has been primarily responsible for sales and
marketing of World Grand Group. Mr. Ng has been engaging in the trading
of cigarette packaging business since 1982. Mr. Ng had been the director
of Yunnan Nine-Nine Colour Printing Co., Ltd. since 1996 until he set up
Kunming Plant in 2002. Mr. Ng is the brother of Mr. Chan Sai Wai.
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Mr. Jerzy Czubak
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jerzy Czubak

aged 55, has more than 29 years of operations experience, of which more
than 14 years have been working with Amcor Tobacco Packaging. Mr. Czubak
has assisted Amcor group of companies in the setting up and management
of production plants in Poland, Ukraine, Russia and various investment
projects in Europe. He is at present the Global Chief Operation Officer of the
tobacco packaging business of Amcor Limited. Mr. Czubak holds a Master
of Art degree from University of Lodz in Poland and a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Bristol in United Kingdom. Mr.
Czubak was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 2 December 2011.
Mr. Czubak is also the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee and a

member of Investment Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich
Ralf Klaus Wunderlich%e 4

Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich

aged 48, is currently the President of Amcor Flexibles Asia Pacific and a
Member of Amcor’s Global Executive Team. He joined Amcor in January 2010
after extensive experience internationally, in executive general management
and finance roles, within the flexible packaging, tobacco packaging and rigid
packaging industry. Prior to joining Amcor, Mr. Wunderlich was a President
& Managing Director of LINPAC Packaging Ltd., a director of LINPAC Group
Limited, President of Alcan Global Tobacco Packaging, and President of Alcan
Packaging Asia and Pacific. Mr. Wunderlich is also a non-executive director
of Aptar Group Inc.,, a supplier of a broad range of dispensing systems listed
on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Wunderlich was appointed as a Non-

executive Director on 14 December 2010.
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Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith

aged 69, is the Chairman of Stirling Coleman Capital Limited. He was the
Chairman and a managing partner of KPMG Peat Marwick Singapore from
1984 to 1993 and concurrently the Chairman of KPMG ASEAN and a member
of KPMG International Board and its Executive Committee. He served as
the President of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
from 1982 to 1992. He was the Chairman of the Singapore International
Chamber of Commerce from 1995 to 1997 and he continues to serve as a
Board member. A founding member of the Singapore Institute of Directors,
he served in its governing council from its inception till 2012. He has also
served as an Adjunct Professor in the School of Accountancy and Business
of The Nanyang Technological University. Mr. Tay is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and he was awarded the
First International Award by the Institute in 1988 for his contribution to
the profession. He was conferred the Bintang Bakti Masharakat (Public
Service Star) by the President of the Republic of Singapore in 1990. Mr.
Tay also serves on the boards of several public companies in Singapore.
Mr. Tay was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in April
2006 and he is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate

Governance Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis

aged 51, is the director of Lau & Au Yeung CPA Limited. Before starting his
CPA practice in mid 1992, he worked in an international accountancy firm
responsible for auditing of a number of renowned listed companies in Hong
Kong. He also acted as a Finance Manager of Paramount Printing Group
Limited (currently known as Next Media Limited), a listed company in Hong
Kong and a sizeable private limited company in Hong Kong. Mr. Au Yeung is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
fellow member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Au Yeung
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in May 2006
and he is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance

Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric
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Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric

aged 52, is currently the Chief Executive Officer of a financial consultancy
and an advisory company specialising in initial public offering, fund
raising and private equity investment. Mr. Oh has more than 21 years of
commercial experience in financial management, business development,
corporate finance and restructuring areas. Mr. Oh is a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and a non-practising
member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.
He also holds a diploma in business studies from Ngee Ann Polytechnic
majoring in accountancy. Mr. Oh was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in May 2006 and he is the Chairman of the Investment
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of

the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Liu Shun Fai

aged 43, is currently the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary
of the Group. He is responsible for the accounting, finance and treasury
function of the Group. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1992 and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of auditing and
accounting experience. Before joining the Company in August 2007, Mr. Liu
had been the Financial Controller and the qualified accountant of two listed
companies in Hong Kong for 9 years and had also worked in an international

accounting firm for 8 years.

Ms. Ma Hui

aged 42, is currently the Vice-President — Manufacturing and Technology of
the Group. Her main duties include the alignment of the Group’ s various
manufacturing assets to excel in efficiencies performance and spearheading
the technology advancement for the Group. Ms. Ma Hui has joined AMVIG
since March 2012 and had worked with Amcor Group for 13 years. Ms. Ma
Hui graduated from Chemical Engineering College of Beijing Union University

and obtained a bachelor degree in Fine Chemical.

Ms. Lui Yuen Ming, Bella

aged 41, is currently the Head of Internal Audit of the Group. She obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong, a
Degree in Law from the China University of Political Science and Law and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has more than 18 years of external and internal auditing
experience in an international accounting firm, a multi-national corporation
and listed companies in Hong Kong. She joined the Group in September
2007.
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SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
Mr. Guan Shao Kun

aged 39, is currently the General Manager of Dongguan KWG. Mr. Guan
graduated from Yunnan Provincial Light Industry College in 1994. Between
1994 and 2000, Mr. Guan had been working as Chief Operator of Gravure
Printing Press in both Yunnan Tobacco Materials Company and Yunnan
Leigh-Mardon Packaging Co., Ltd. Between 2000 and 2003, he had been
working as Head of Printing Section in New Toyo (Viet) Paper Product Co.,
Ltd. Between 2003 and 2012, he has been working as Manager of Gravure
Section, Head of Technical and Production Department and Deputy General
Manager in Kunming Plant. In January 2013, he was appointed as General

Manager of Dongguan KWG.

Mr. Guo Shu Guang

aged 46, is currently the General Manager of Beijing Plant and the Vice
President of the Group. He holds a Degree in Accounting from Renmin
University of China in 1997. He also holds a degree in Business Administration
of Industry from Beijing Institute of Petrochemical Technology in 1990. He
joined Beijing Plant in 1998 and was promoted to General Manager in May
2006.
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Mr. Li Ru He

aged 46, is currently the Executive General Manager of Hangzhou Weicheng
and Vice President of the Group. He graduated from Xiamen University,
Fujian and obtained a bachelor degree in Biology, and qualified as Economist
and Engineer. He joined Hangzhou Weicheng in 1997 and was promoted to

Executive General Manager in 2010.

Mr. Qi Ming

aged 55, is currently the General Manager of Kunming Plant. Mr. Qi graduated
from University of Kunming in Economic and Management and has over 33
years  experience in the printing industry. Between 2002 and March 2007,
Mr. Qi had been working as General Manager of Kunming Colour Printing Co.,
Ltd. He joined Kunming Plant in April 2007 and was appointed as General
Manager in January 2010.
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Mr. Wang Shen

aged 53, is currently the General Manager of Qingdao Plant and Vice
President of the Group. He majored in Management and graduated from
Shandong Normal University in 1985, he majored in Management and
graduated from Shandong Provincial Party School in 1995, and he also holds
a Master Degree in Management from the University of Northern Virginia,
USA. During the period between 2000 to 2004, he held the position as
Deputy General Manager of Qingdao Plant. During the period between 2004
to 2010, he held the positions as director of Estate Business Division, General
Manager of Qingdao Etsong Xing Ri Investment Limited Company, General
Manager, Vice Chairman and Chairman of Qingdao Etsong Xing Ri Estate
Development Limited Company. In March 2010, he was appointed as General

Manager of Qingdao Plant.

Mr. Xu Guo Min

aged 44, is currently the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of both Dongguan
KWG and Kunming Plant. Mr. Xu obtained his Master Degree in Business
Administration from Kunming University of Science and Technology and
has over 16 years’ experience in the printing industry. Between 1995 and
August 2007, Mr. Xu had been working as a Chief Controller of Production
Department of Yunnan Nine Nine Color Printing Co., Ltd. He has joined
Dongguan Plant since November 2007 and was appointed as General
Manager in January 2010. Mr. Xu was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of both Dongguan KWG and Kunming Plant in January 2013.
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Mr. Zhu Tian Shou

aged 53, is currently the General Manager of Xian Plant and Vice President
of the Group. He holds a Textile Engineer diploma from Xian Polytechnic
University and attended master of business administration course in
2003-2004. Before joining the Group, he was a senior engineer and a member
of assessment committee in People’ s Liberation Army’ s ( “PLA" ) General
Logistics Department. He was also the Head of a PLA Factory and General
Manager of Xian Great Sky Science & Technology Co., Ltd..
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Corporate Governance Report
R

INTRODUCTION

As a publicly listed company, the Board of AMVIG recognizes its
responsibilities to comply with appropriate corporate governance
standards and guidelines. Therefore, we are committed to providing clear
accountability, proper management of the Company’s asset, enhancing the
Company’s reputation and standard in the community and supporting the
achievement of its environmental, safety, social and other obligations so as to

protect the long-term value to our shareholders, customers and employees.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

This report summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and
structures that were in place during the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

BOARD MATTERS
Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The Board directs and supervises the Company’s affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to execute his actions in the best
interests of the Company. The Board is responsible for the Company’s overall
strategic direction, key operational initiatives, major funding and investment
proposals. It is also charged with monitoring the operational and financial
position and performance, as well as corporate governance practices. Where
appropriate, the Board is obliged to approve any key executive appointments
and succession planning. The Board also provides leadership and guidance
to management. The Company has in place financial authorisation and
approval limits for capital expenditures as well as acquisitions and disposal of
investments. Within these guidelines, the Board approves transactions above
certain thresholds. The Board also approves the annual budget and the
financial results of the Group and various Board committees were formed to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. The Directors may have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company
with a view to ensure that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and

regulations, are followed.
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In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the Company’s expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to

discharge their duties.

The Board meets periodically at least four times a year and also meets as
warranted by particular circumstances outside the scheduled meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, a total of four Board
meetings were held. The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings, as well as the frequency of

such meetings, are disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

During the year, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance

and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company has organized a 4 hours in-house workshop
conducted by a professional firm for all Directors of the Company namely
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Chan Sai Wai, Mr. Ge Su, Mr. Ng Sai Kit, Mr.
Jerzy Czubak, Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich, Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith, Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric. The workshop covered topics
including fraud risk management and recent development of Listing Rules
and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition to formal workshop, all
Directors namely Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Chan Sai Wai, Mr. Ge Su,
Mr. Ng Sai Kit, Mr. Jerzy Czubak, Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich, Mr. Tay Ah Kee,
Keith, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric developed
themselves through (1) conducting focused discussion on issues relating to
the business and operations of the Company at committees meetings. (2)
research, reading and study of relevant regulations and standards; and (3)
attending relevant courses, seminars and talks in order to strengthen the

skills and knowledge relevant for their respective roles.

All Directors have provided the Company with their respective training

records in compliance with Code A.6.5 of the CG Code.

Corporate Governance Report
M EERBE

BAN BEEAAERBAEERT  REERBR
TERBFUEXER  BRABAARREAE - &
EERARINESRHECENBLEEXER
IAmBI BB EEEITRIS

o

EEE - FELETOATHER  BESFS
BN EEZENERENBAFTERITGER
HE-_ZT—=F+_A=+—HLGHRFE "
EHBEUTHAEEEEZ EENEEEE
FOEFEZEGEIRRIERGIEEERR
ZEGHRZIBITRBIINARE NIEE

ESEHEI

FR EFTABRRBAARRRE KR
RAISWEHAE  NEEFSRRLERE
ENETHEBE - W RRABBEREES
HSFEHEEEREI UNEREEMGANM
BT - AR ETRENEFFULTR
AREMEREERENTIER  UERE
SRPI R EEMMERFEEEREMNNEE

o

FRN - ARFBABARR 2RSS (AILRE
S RUEREE BHEHFLE RUNELE -
Jerzy Czubakt4 - Ralf Klaus WunderlichsE 4
BIESE - B RELERPEELE) 20—
REBEEQFETHE/NERBHE o Hat
ENEFEREHFRBREER EMRAILALSE
BRATHEGIH T EER - RIEXHAT RN 2
BEF (ERELE RILELELE Bk
A RIEAR%EE -~ Jerzy Czubakst 4 - Ralf Klaus
Wunderlich%c 4 ~ BE A4 - BUIG R EE S & Rt
BERE) BBRIREEGERE LRARTNE
BREEFHETERNH QMK BER
SRR RER RR)2IMNEBRE - #
SERERIESED  WERRSEESEBER
FH A R AL R A -

2REFHERBEEEERTIEACSKERAR
B E B RFFIRCE o

—FE— =44 Annual Report 2013
SREHERE B BR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited



Corporate Governance Report

FEEIR R

BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

The Board now comprises nine Directors including a Non-executive
Chairman, three Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs"),
and three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"). The composition

of the Board and representation on Board committees are set out below:

ExgdEmkES

EERFANRESAR  BRE—HIFNT
TR ZRWTES  MEFNTES ([3FH
TEE]) R=2BIFNTES (BN
TEZR]) BEGCHEKREEFZES MY

7T
Length of
Title Name Position Gender Age* services*
EEc) e B 5l FiR* BR 75 48 H
Non-executive Chairman: Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy Chairman of the Board and Male 63 9 years
FEITESE - FREE A Chairman of Nomination £ ofF
Committee
BEFRTER
IEEEETE
Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Sai Wai Vice-Chairman Male 56 8 years
HITES - PR 18 S A EIFE 3 8%F
Mr. Ge Su Chief Executive Officer Male 57 4 years
Ba#ts BEEHITE 3 VS
Mr. Ng Sai Kit Male 51 8 years
RUERNFE = 85
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Jerzy Czubak Chairman of Risk Male 55 2 years
EMITES : Jerzy Czubakst & Management 5 pX:=
Committee
ERERESET/E
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Male 48 3 years
Ralf Klaus Wunderlich 56 4E 5 3F
Independent Non-executive Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith Chairman of Audit Male 69 8 years
Directors: AL A Committee 5 84F
BIIFRITES FEREEETE
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis  Chairman of Remuneration Male 51 8 years
BRI REE S A Committee S 84F
FNESEELE
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric Chairman of Investment Male 52 8 years
HEEZEE Committee and Corporate 3 84

* Up to 21 March 2014
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Our Directors are experienced in a range of corporate and industry expertise
such as accounting, finance and business and operation management. The
diversity of the Directors’ experience provides useful exchange of ideas and

views to ensure that decisions are made with a balanced judgement.

The Company has formal letters of appointment with each of the Directors.
Given their nature of duties, executive Directors do not have a fixed term of
appointment and either party may terminate the appointment by serving at
least one month's written notice. All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company
are appointed for a term of two years from the date of their respective
appointments/renewal. All Directors are subject to re-election on retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company

but eligible for re-election for re-appointment.

The Nomination Committee reviews the independence of each Director. It
considers a Director as independent if he has no relationship with the Group
or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere,
with the exercise of the Director’s independent business judgment in the

best interests of the Company.

Other than (i) Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Jerzy Czubak and Mr. Ralf Klaus
Wunderlich, who are senior management of Amcor group of companies, and
(ii) Mr. Chan Sai Wai who is the brother of Mr. Ng Sai Kit, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship among the other

Directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers the Independent Non-executive Director to be

independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 28 to 36 of this

annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated and not
performed by the same person. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership of the Board and the formulation of overall strategic development
of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the

day-to-day management of the Group's business.

During the year, Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy is the Chairman and Mr. Ge Su is
the Chief Executive Officer.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Liu Shun Fai. He has
fulfilled the requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
As an employee of the Company, the company secretary supports the
Board, ensures good information flow within the Board and Board policy
and procedures are followed; advises the Board on governance matters,
facilitates induction and, monitors the training and continuous professional
development of Directors. He has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2013. His biography
is set out in the "Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses candidates for directorships
(including Executive Directors) with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board before making recommendations to the Board. The Nomination
Committee normally considers the current composition of the Board, the
skills and experience required, and ensures that the Board has an appropriate
balance of independent Directors as well as diversity with the right profile of

expertise, skills, attributes and ability.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Investment Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee to assist itself in the execution of its duties. In
considering the composition of the membership in different committees,
several key factors are taken into account, such as equitable allocation of
responsibilities among Board members, promotion of active participation

and maximization of the effectiveness of different committees.

(1) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised the three INEDs: Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
(Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main

responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

- assists the Board in discharging its statutory responsibilities on

financial and accounting matters;

- reviews the audit plans and reports of the external auditors and
internal auditors and considers the effectiveness of the actions

taken by management on the auditors' recommendations;

- appraises and reports to the Board on the audits undertaken by the

external auditors and the adequacy of disclosure of information;

- reviews the cost effectiveness of the audit and the independence

and objectivity of the external auditors; and

- reviews connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions, as defined under the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
M EERBE

EEXRET

RHDEFTEATAGRY  EFEENLE
fl§$§/\a CAEZZBEE RHREZEE® -
¥ExEe REZBg RAREEZE®
TCEERZBEG RERSZESZKEMAK
B HERCETEIZREEHREEFENRE
ZEFEIERE  BKEEBRSENEE
RESRZEGUEX-

7

(1) EREE

ERZEBeRBEREIBIFATES
MERE (EF)  BBERELERARE
pita

BEREZEGNBRBE R B R AR
AN, - EREEE T EREBE T
KIF

- WHEFERTHABMBLENER
ZEEBE

— RTINS ERED R A R AR B 2 B AT
BIRmE  BAERESRRBENHEER
FPTEREVTE) 2 BRI

— FHEIMNEREENETT 2 ER TIERER
BEZREN YRNEETER:

— BREBERZKARE RIMNEZEE 2B
THEREEY R

~ BREBEXSRBEWERS (FHR
ETAD -

—FE— =44 Annual Report 2013
SREHERE B BR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited



Corporate Governance Report

FEEIR R

50

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. It met with
the Company'’s internal and external auditors to discuss the results of
their respective examinations and their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls. It has authority to investigate any matters
within its terms of reference and has full access to and cooperation from
management, in addition to its direct access to the external auditors.
The external auditors, in the course of conducting their normal audit
procedures on the statutory financial statements of the Company, also
considered the Company’s internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design their audit procedures. If required, the Audit Committee
has authority to seek external resources to enable it to discharge its

functions properly.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the interim financial statements
and the annual financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 and for the financial year ended 31 December 2013
respectively, as well as the auditors' reports thereon. Any connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Group
during the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee; in cases
of practical difficulties, the Audit Committee provides guidance to
management to assist in their resolution. Appropriate disclosure is made

in the annual report.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the

external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprised the three INEDs: Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh Choon Gan,

Eric.
The key responsibilities of and the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013 are stated in the

Remuneration Report set out in this report on pages 60 to 69.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year.
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(3) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy
(Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis, Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh
Choon Gan, Eric.

The Nomination Committee’s main function is to ensure that the
size, structure and diversity of the Board are adequate for effective
discussions and decision-making. It also has the responsibility that the
Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors, with a mix
of business experience in relevant disciplines. According to the board
diversity policy adopted by the Nomination Committee during the year,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc. The final decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee

are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

- reviews and recommends to the Board the retirement and
re-election of Directors in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association;

- reviews the size, structure and diversity of the Board to ensure that
the Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors
and to ensure an appropriate balance of culture, expertise, skills,
attributes and ability among the Directors;

- reviews the independence of Directors; and
- reviews the composition of the boards of subsidiary and associated
companies and where appropriate, provides guidance on the

appointment of suitable Directors to those companies.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year to

perform the above responsibilities.
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(4) INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee comprised Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric
(Chairman), Mr. Jerzy Czubak and Mr. Ge Su.

The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee include the

following:

- considers and approves strategic and portfolio investments and

divestments within certain prescribed thresholds;

- reviews the Company’s investment and treasury policies; and

- manages the Company’s Group's assets and liabilities in accordance

with the policies and directives of the Board.

The Investment Committee held one meeting during the year.

(5) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprised Mr. Jerzy Czubak
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Sai Wai and Mr. Ge Su.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee include

the following:

- oversees the establishment, implementation, and ongoing review

of the Company'’s risk management;

- reviews the overall risk management system and process and
makes recommendations on changes as and when considered

appropriate, having regard to costs and benefits; and

- reviews the Company’s material risk exposures and evaluates

the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating measures

implemented by management.

The Risk Management Committee held one meeting during the year.

The Risk Management Report is set out in this report on pages 74 to 79.
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(6) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee comprised the three INEDs: Mr.
Oh Choon Gan, Eric (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis.

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee

include the following:

- reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Company;

and

- reviews the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
respective disclosure in the interim and annual reports of the

Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the

year to perform the above responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration policy and basis of determining the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 60 to 69 in this

report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for

the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:
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Remuneration bands

Number of persons

AE

Up to HK$1,000,000 &= 1,000,00078 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are

set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

1,000,001/ 7L & 1,500,000/8 7T 1
3,000,001/ 7L £ 3,500,00078% 7T 1
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

EEERESZEEERURK
RREZHERR

The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board and the HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HULEUBFES

Board committees, and general meeting during the financial year ended 31 EEHRFESTENEFTLECEZULRKREK
December 2013 was as follows: @ 7 IERINT
Risk Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Management Investment  Governance General
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting*
i ¥

Exe ENZET §MzZEe REZEE EEZEE® REZEE ERZEE RRAS®
Number of Meeting(s) Held BIEZENY 4 3 1 2 1 1 1 1
Non-executive Chairman FHITLE
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy LRELE 4/4 - - 212 - - - 1/1
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chan Sai Wai RitEEE 4/4 - - - 11 - - 0/1
Mr. Ng Sai Kit RUEAREE 44 - - - - - - 0N
Mr. Ge Su BEEAE 474 - - - il 11 - 11
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czaubak % A 3/4 - - - /1 /1 - 0
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Ralf Klaus 4/4 - - - - - - 0/1

Wunderlich 4
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BEEE 4/4 33 1 1 - - 11 11
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BEXRELE 4/4 33 " 21 - - /1 1/1
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HRERE 44 33 11 22 - ”n " 0/1
*  being annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2013 R IE-ZEXNAT=ZASRTHNARBRRESE
RE

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013

54
SEEHEAL AR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited



Corporate Governance Report
M EERBE

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises the importance of the establishment and maintenance

of a system of internal control and the review of its effectiveness in order

to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets. The

Board is reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources of staff with

appropriate qualifications and experience in its accounting and financial

reporting team and that sufficient training and budget have been provided.

(a)

Review on Internal Control System

The Group's internal control system consists of various policies,
procedures and control activities to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage risks of failure
in the Group’s operational systems. The system of internal control
is intended to safeguard the Group's assets and resources against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, ensure transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s authorization and ensure accounting records are reliable

for preparing financial information internally and publicly.

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the assistance of the internal
and external auditors, the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Management has used its best endeavors to ensure that
there were no material internal control deficiencies, weaknesses or areas

of concern identified which might affect shareholders.

Management of Internal Audit Function

The Group has utilized its Internal Audit Department to assist the Board
to independently review the Group's internal controls throughout the

year.

Internal Audit Charter

The mission, objectives, accountability, responsibility, independence and
authority of the Internal Audit Department are clearly stated in a written
Internal Audit Charter, which is approved and periodically reviewed by
the Audit Committee.
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Reporting Structure

The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee,
although it also reports administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.
The Internal Audit Department brings appropriate matters identified
during the course of audits to the Audit Committee’s attention and
also has the right to consult the Audit Committee without reference
to the management. This reporting structure allows the Internal Audit

Department to maintain its independence.

Internal Audit Plan

An annual internal audit plan for the Group, which is reviewed by the
Audit Committee, is formulated based on the results of the annual
assessment of risks and review of internal control. The Internal Audit
Department also conducts other projects and investigations as may be

required.

Ongoing Internal Control Review

The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk and control based audit
approach in assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's

internal control system on an on-going basis.

Controls on Inside Information

In respect of procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, a mechanism has been established
to identify, analyse and disclose any inside information with reference
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. Besides, the Group’s employee
handbook contains the general prohibition from disclosing such
information to persons who do not have a demonstrable need to know
the information. Group staff is required to acknowledge the receipt and

comply with all the contents contained in the employee handbook.
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Responsibilities in Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and

that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97 to 98 of the annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

RSM Nelson Wheeler has been re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditor by shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. They are primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements. During the year, the total remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’'s external auditor amounted to
approximately HKS$3.3 million of which approximately HK$3.1 million was
incurred for statutory audit and approximately HK$0.2 million was incurred

for non-audit services.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes in engaging in regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to conveying important

and relevant information to shareholders on a timely basis.
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The Company is mindful to ensure that information is made publicly available
on a timely basis. A shareholders’ communication policy was adopted by
the Company to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
encourage them to communicate actively with the Company. The Board will

review the policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Disclosure of information is made by way of publishing announcements,
notices, circulars and financial reports through the website of the Stock
Exchange, press releases, general meetings, as well as the corporate website

(www.amvig.com) which has a dedicated investor relations section.

Shareholders’ Rights

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionists by the Company.

Shareholders may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director of
the Company. If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to the Company
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 601-602,
6th Floor, Top Glory Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general
meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of his/her
willingness to be appointed together with his/her information as required
to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period
commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending on the date falling seven

days after the dispatch of the said notice of the general meeting.
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited

at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other enquiries or comments raised by any Shareholder can be mailed to the
Board at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
601-602, 6th Floor, Top Glory Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, through the “IR Contact” under Investor Relations section in the
Company's official website (www.amvig.com), or sent through fax number at
(852) 2970 7070, or through the Company’s hotline at (852) 2970 7000.

Dealings in Securities

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than that required under
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “"Model Code"). Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of them confirms that he
has complied in full with the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities

transactions for the year.

Corporate Governance Report
M EERBE

EEEERENRMATAARREBSRD B
FRETDHEREEELBTERATEN i
IFAEBZRRERISIFRA A L2288 -

FARERENEMERANER  IBEEE
2 (MILARRABEBEEL XM EING
B T E 26257 G TR L 61E601-602F ) + 52
B HRARFE 7 #@uh(www.amvig.com)i& &
BEREANREEMARBE]I BT  HAIFER
(852) 2970 7070 + BN E AN A A B AR(852) 2970
7000 °

REBHRMN—EBRKEETERBHALTR
WS+l EM BT AEFTRTERFRSZ
EAESP A ([1R2E<FRI]) REZBRFFH - K
755“<ﬁ£$§$f’ﬁﬂj%ﬁu
CEERFRYRE
x%Z%ﬁwMo

B REDRE
BTRREFETES

—FE— =44 Annual Report 2013
SREHERE B BR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited



Remuneration Report
N R




Contribute to the

development

of the Group %A £ 18] % J& E th E Rk



Remuneration Report

St I 7

INTRODUCTION

Despite different domestic financial and economic crises, China was able to
achieve a growth in GDP by approximately 7.7% in 2013. Furthermore, owing
to the booming middle class consumption and growing overall optimism,
China's economy is expected to grow continuously at a stable pace in the
coming year which will facilitate the growth of our business. However,
the rise in minimum wage levels and Tendering in tobacco industry in the
PRC have exerted significant impact on our corporate earnings. The high
demand in experienced management and marketing professionals in the
PRC and Hong Kong is putting upward pressure on the remunerations to key
management. In order to incentivize our key management to continue to
contribute to the development of the group, their remuneration packages
have been reviewed to ensure their attractiveness. Incentive schemes are
also maintained this year to keep rewarding the senior management on the

basis of individual, team, and company performance.

This remuneration report, which has been reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, sets out the Company’s policy on
the remuneration of Chairman, Executive Directors and NEDs, together with
the details of Directors' remuneration packages for the financial year 2013 as

set out on pages 60 to 69.

1. KEY DEVELOPMENT

Regarding the remuneration to the senior executives, the Board has

taken the following steps during the year:

1. NEDs'fees were maintained the same as last year.

2. Bonuses were paid to the head office management based
principally on the delivery of outperformance against objective

benchmarks.
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3. Incentive bonuses were paid by reference with key performance
indicators ("KPI") set for plant management. The KPI is basically set
to measure the performance of the management based on the
return on fixed assets employed, percentage of actual results over

budget and last year results.

4. Basic salaries were adjusted basically to reflect the effect of
inflation, work performance and the change in employment market

conditions.

Full details of the Chairman’s, Executive Directors’ and NEDs’

remuneration are set out in the report that follows.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been set up since 2006 to
review both the remuneration structure and package of the senior

management and NEDs.

Tasks

The committee’s tasks are:

- to review and determine, on behalf of the Board of Directors, the
policies for executives' remuneration and to report on those to the

shareholders;

- to revise and recommend to the Board, the remuneration system
for the NEDs;

- to monitor the implementation of remuneration policies being

applied by the Company; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual Directors and senior management.

The present remuneration packages of AMVIG have been compared
with the prevailing market practice in Hong Kong and corresponding
recommendations were proposed to the Board of Directors for their

consideration and approval.

3. 2RAIKMEEEHIE < BRRBRER
(TEERRBER]) T RETEAL - &R
VEARRREFTIEEERBMABEE
BEZDR BERLEERREERE
FERENLPIRGEEERERR

4. PBEXRFE  UABRBBER - T
ERB KB THIHRFEE(CHTH R

By 488
FE o

R SITEERIRGTEERM RS
BRI TR -
FMES S

FHEEEE —TTRERL - MR SR
BEEENFMTES ZHMRBRGE -

oS
ZEEZBBA

- RREFERILEITBRARZHMHM
B - YARRREEMRER

=30

— EEARRQBMEAHFNBER Z2HTIE
DRI d

— SMEREERSREIEE R MENR
EFESRLEBRS -

¥R B 2 O R BCRRE 2 H 5B R
BRRITHEERETLR  XCRNEFS
RXAEERUHREBRIE -

—FE— =44 Annual Report 2013
SREHERE B BR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited



Remuneration Report

St I 7

Constitution and operation

The committee comprises solely INEDs and is chaired by Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis. The other members are Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh

Choon Gan, Eric.

The committee held one meeting in the period under review. There was
a full attendance record of all members. The committee has reported to
the Board on its activities after each meeting. Its terms of reference of
the committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.
The committee is accountable to the shareholders through its annual

report on Directors’ remuneration and the opinions of shareholders are

taken into account when making decisions.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The main elements of the Company’s remuneration policies are:

- noindividual should determine his or her own remuneration.

- remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with

whom the Company competes for human resources.

- remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and

responsibility so as to attract and retain high calibre individuals.

- motivate Directors to achieve challenging performance levels.

- align executive rewards with shareholders’ value.

- recognize both individual and corporate achievement.
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REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS IN 2013

The committee has followed the remuneration policy and system
adopted in 2007 on proposing remuneration packages of Executive

Directors for the Board’s consideration and approval.

The committee seeks to ensure linking the remuneration for top
management with their performance and the Company’s operating
results by structuring remuneration packages to include both fixed and

variable components.

The following key principles guide its policy:

- policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors will be
determined and regularly reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee which will set the tone for the remuneration of other

senior executives.

- the remuneration structure will support and reflect AMVIG’s stated

purpose to maximise long-term shareholders’ value.

- the remuneration structure will reflect a fair system of rewards for

the participants.

- the remuneration will be based on the fixed compensation,
performance bonus and pension arrangement. The performance
bonus will be linked to the achievement of demanding
performance targets that are independently set and reflect the

creation of long-term shareholders’ value.

- a performance share scheme will be developed in order to align

executive and shareholders’ interests.

4.
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certain KPIs, which can be quantitative and qualitative, will be
set objectively by the management within a framework that
is approved by the Remuneration Committee to evaluate the

performance of Directors.

remuneration policy and practices will be as transparent as possible,

both for participants and shareholders.

The remuneration package consists of fixed compensation, performance

bonus and pension arrangement in which the performance bonus is

suggested to play a more significant part in individual rewards as part

of the policy to attract, motivate and retain high performing individuals.

The three components of Executive Directors’ remuneration are as

follows:

Fixed Compensation

Fixed compensation includes basic salary, allowances and
benefits-in-kind. Base salary and allowances are set and reviewed
annually for each Director taking into consideration the competitive
market position, market practice, and the Company’s and

individual's performance.

Annual Incentive Program

The levels of performance bonus are set by the Remuneration
Committee. No Executive Directors serve on the committee. The
annual incentive can be paid in form of performance bonus as

determined by the Board.

Long-term Incentive

The Executive Directors are recommended to take part in the
long-term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"). The LTIP will be designed to
align the interests of the Executive Directors with those of the
shareholders by an award in the form of performance shares that is

linked with shareholders’ value.
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REMUNERATION FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 5. HIITEEZ2ME
The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company was AARNBRITESI N Z2MEE7| 0T -
shown below:
Employee
share-based Retirement
For the year ended Salariesand ~ Discretionary ~ compensation  benefit scheme
31 December 2013 Fees other benefit bonuses benefits  contributions Total
BE-Z-=%1ZR e MR %12 BHER
=t-HLEE e REMEF BERL EEMLET HE 28 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THR TR TR TR
Executive Directors HES
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Rt 54 - 10000 8,000 - 15 18015
Mr. Ge Su BEiE - 3,068 644 - 1 3713
Mr. Ng Sai Kit RttAEE - 7500 6,000 - 15 13515
- 20,568 14,644 - 31 35,243
Employee
share-based Retirement
For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary ~ compensation  benefit scheme
31 December 2012 Fees other benefit bonuses benefits contributions Total
HEZZS——£+ZR e IR Z RINER
=+—HLEE itk REMERN BEEL  EEMEET HEE @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Titn T TEL Tin T
Executive Directors HES
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Rt 54 - 6,369 5,200 15,362 14 26945
Mr. Ge Su BEHLE - 2446 211 286 3 2,946
Mr. Ng Sai Kit REREE - 4500 3,900 11522 14 19936
- 13315 9311 27,170 3 49807
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6. REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR 6. kHITEE_ZE—=FMe =

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS IN 2013

The existing remuneration packages and policies which based on the
qualification, professional experiences, time spent and work load of
individual INED have proved to be fair, attractive and effective in the
past years and therefore, the same policies and principles were adopted

continually in 2013.

REMUNERATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The fees paid to each of our NEDs for their services on the Group and,
as applicable, on its Board committees are set out below. The fees were

proposed by Remuneration Committee and reviewed by the Board of

=Rl

BRATH 78 MR R TR IR (8 58 LSR8 T
BEENER  EXLR RARELIEES
BE  BEEFREERA/LIF - AR3lH
REY - AR - - =FEERWARD
BER K R A -

7. RMITESZME

REFNTESTRAARELR (RIERTE)
EEZBeRHERBMAREN 20 H
I - e ImFHEEeRE YO K

Directors. EFEEZ -
Employee
share-based Retirement
For the year ended Salariesand ~ Discretionary ~ compensation  benefit scheme
31 December 2013 Fees other benefit bonus benefits  contributions Total
BE-E-=£1Z28 e DRG% A2 BINER
Zt-BLEEE ik REMER BEEL  ESMEER HE L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThR THL TER TER TARL
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy BRELE 491 - - - - 491
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BHEEE 905 - - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BHRERE 874 - - - - 874
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEEEE 873 - - _ _ 873
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czaubak % A 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Ralf Klaus Wunderlich %% & 376 - - - - 376
3,895 - - - - 3,895
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Employee

share-based Retirement

For the year ended Salary and Discretionary ~ compensation  benefit scheme
31 December 2012 Fees other benefit bonus benefits contributions Total

#2317 i ARt 2 RIRER
ST-BIEE Be RE R HETL  EEMSER TR &5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TARL TARL TER TARL TER

Non-executive Directors FHES

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy SREEE 49 - - - - 49)
Mr. Tay A Kee, Keith BERAE 907 - - - - 907
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BBRELE 875 - - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric WRERE 874 - - - - 874
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak’t A 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Ralf Klaus Wunderlich %6 & 376 - - - - 376
3900 - - - - 3900

CONTINUED SCRUTINY AND DISCLOSURE

The Remuneration Committee remains committed to continued

scrutiny of remuneration levels, and to high standards of disclosure and

transparency to shareholders on such matters.

8. FEEERKE

HHERG PN FELEHBAF -
BERBR fE Bk P S A ©
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INTRODUCTION

As a leading tobacco packages printing specialist, we understand the
importance of people. The Group adopts a human resources strategy, which
aligns the interests of employees with that of the shareholders, ensures
abundant supply of talents to contribute a sustainable growth to the Group.

STAFF

The number of employees decreased slightly from 2,596 at the beginning
of the Reporting Period to 2,531 at the end of the Reporting Period. The
following tables and charts show the employee profile of the Group:

Employees by profile

]
®#=

EABLENEBERENRBESR  RIVFMAA
MNEBHE NEBRMANWANERRBIEET
HEEMMEGE— REXEHAT HERE
AEBRAFEERE -

[=n

BT ASMBRERB 22596 AR EFHRE

HAfE 4 KhwmA THREE R ASE
EzREERR

B & AZUEUR B AR

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
Total at year end FLEHBRE 2,531 2,596

Total number of employees (By location)
2013
3.369% Xian %

40.22% aingdao &

6.7 2% Nanjing B

=

o (Ui EE 5 )

15.01% Beijing 3t

13.319% pongguan &3

6.649% Hangzhou 71N
1.03% Hong Kong &%
13.71% Kunming B288

Total number of employees (By function) ETH# (ABEEEI D)
2013
—E-=F
99 214 1540 70 67 251
2012
\ \ I \
16 174 1602 6154 289 300
0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000
M Management [ Finance & M Production Ml Sales & Marketing [l Research & M Quality Control [ Others
ERE Administration HE i Development Bk Hib
BT RATI wEE
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HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY

The objective of the human resources strategy of AMVIG is to support the
growth of the Group through the attraction, maintenance and development

of talents.

We identify talents from both within and outside the Group. Internally,
talents are identified and retained for promotion to a more senior level. When
no suitable candidates can be identified internally, we will recruit through

advertisements, campus interview or headhunting from competitors.

Maintaining quality people is equally important. Key performance indicators
are designed to ensure all employees are sharply focused on the Group's
objectives Moreover, our incentive system incentivizes our management to

drive better results in order to improve the profitability of the Group.

A competitive and changing business environment requires skilled workers
and knowledgeable staff. This can be achieved by various development and
training programs such as on-the-job training, seminars, workshops and
overseas trips. Such development and training programs aim at improving
the staff's communication and problem solving skills. They will also be
more knowledgeable through sharing experience within AMVIG or with
Amcor companies. We believe through such comprehensive training and
development programs our employees are equipped with a wide range of

skill sets and knowledge to handle the ever changing business environment.

The Group has been implementing a succession plan, which identifies
replacements for key management positions upon their leaving and
retirement. Such plan ensures the Group will not be handicapped through

the loss of any key managers.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2014

The Group will continue to refine human resources strategy and implement
appropriate human resources practices to ensure the accountability through
managing performance of the employees so as to drive sustainable business

success.

Human Resources Report
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INTRODUCTION

The Chinese tobacco packaging industry is dynamic and it is vital for AMVIG

to manage the risks posed by the ever-changing competition landscape.

The application of a sound framework in identifying and prioritizing risks,

followed by the coordinated application of resources to minimize, monitor,

control or mitigate the probability or impact of such risks, enables AMVIG to

convert threats into opportunities.

1.

MARKET RISK

In order to address market risks brought forth by the competition from
its competitors, the management continuously deploy resources to
ensure the Group remains focused on long term growth of its business.
In order to take our partnership with our customers to the next level,
additional resources on research and development will enable to Group
to create new designs to assist our customers to upgrade their product
portfolio. New machines will also be invested to support the growth in
demand of our customers. The Group has also accumulated experiences
in the Tendering for tobacco packaging products over the past few
years and has established an intelligence database which will be shared
among our plants. Such practices enable us to improve the success rate
in future tendering. More marketing resources are also deployed so as to
foster deeper relationships with our customers and grow our business
through organic means with an aim to maintain our leading market

position.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of potential financial loss and/or business
instability arising from disasters such as fire, earthquake, floods and
hurricanes, failure in internal controls or operational processes, inability
to manage costs; to continue product development and innovation;
to hire and retain talent and the failures to comply with government
and environmental regulations. The Group has over the years, made

progressive steps to manage such risks:

(1) In order to maximize profitability under challenging business
environment, management placed high priority on profit
improvement program. The program aims to reduce all kinds of
costs and expenses, including but not limited to, raw material
costs, wastage, manning level and energy costs. It also encourages
improvement in production efficiencies and the management's
rewards are also linked to the degree of accomplishments in such

programs.

(2) Management has used its benchmarking system so as to compare
performances among different plants, identifies opportunities for
improvements in production efficiencies and to minimize downtime

and prolonged outages.

(3) The management strives to maintain the importance of
communication and share of information amongst the group and
subsidiaries management. Management meetings and regular intra-
group conferences and seminars were held so the latest know-how

and technologies were shared within the Group.

(4) Management is committed to reduce the fire and haphazard
risks in all of our plants. Work safety training, fire drills and drying
tests are carried out regularly to improve the ways in which we
response to major incidents. Specialists were employed to ensure
all safety policies were strictly implemented on the shop floor. In
order to ensure continuous supply of products and services to our
customers in case of disasters, the management has also started to

work on detailed contingency plans under such circumstances.

2.

Risk Management Report
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3. FINANCIAL RISK

78

The Company is exposed to various types of financial risks, including

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair

value risk. Details of the Group's financial risk and the management of

such risks are outlined in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

(1)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has limited exposure to foreign currency risk as only
a minimum amount of business transactions are denominated in
currencies other than Renminbi, the functional currency of the

Company, and the respective group entities.

On the other hand, the Company has substantially all of its
borrowings denominated Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") which may

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not
enter into any foreign currency hedging arrangements. As of 31
December 2013, if Renminbi had strengthen/weakened by 3%
against Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been

approximately HK$44 million higher/lower than reported.

CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant credit risk, which is primarily
attributable to stringent management of its trade receivables. In
addition to regular reviews of the recoverable amount of trade
receivables, the management has also placed strict controls over
working capital management of each operation. Such measures
enable the Group to shorten its working capital cycle and enhance

cash flows.

The counterparty risk is small as the Group's customers are mainly
state-owned tobacco groups, which according to the assessment of

the management are financially healthy.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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(3) LIQUIDITY RISK ) mEE TR
As of the end of 2013, the Group's gearing ratio was 47% which RIZ—=FK  AEEMNEEBGEL
is healthy and most of its borrowings were of long-term nature. ERAT% - K - BRA D E

Taking into account the amount of cash on hand of HK$2.3 billion,
the Group is in a net cash position. The Group will continue its
policy to monitor the cash flows of the Group closely so that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash in the short and longer term to

repay bank loans when they fall due.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-
rate bank borrowings. With a stable outlook for interest rates, the
Group prefers to keep certain borrowings with variable rates, rather
than to enter into interest rate swaps, which fix the interest at
substantially higher rates. AMVIG considers that interest rate risks

are minimal.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.
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#  Directors’ Report
HF R

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company (together with

its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's turnover and contribution to operating result for the year is
attributable to printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of transfer
papers and laser film. The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
location of the operations of the Group are set out in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 178.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK8.8 cents per share (2012:
HK8.8 cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2013. The Board
now recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.2 cents per share
to the members of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 24 June 2014 in respect of the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: HK9.2 cents per share).
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the

statements of changes in equity on page 103 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for cash distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to approximately HK$3,139 million.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium of
the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium

may also be distributed in the form of fully bonus shares.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are set out

in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note

24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in

note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the Company's share
award scheme are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share option scheme”

and “Share award scheme” of this report respectively.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group is set

out on pages 179 to 180.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Non-executive Chairman

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sai Wai (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Ge Su (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Sai Kit

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich
Mr. Jerzy Czubak

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric

In accordance with article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire but, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election pursuant to article 86
of the articles of association of the Company. Details of the Directors to be
retired and subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are contained in the circular to be despatched together with

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the employer's costs charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year and the retirement benefit schemes of the Group

are set out in notes 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group

are set out on pages 28 to 41 of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the facilities agreement (the “Facilities Agreement”) dated
13 August 2012 and entered into, among other parties, the Company as
borrower, two subsidiaries of the Company as guarantors, and various
financial institutions as agent, arrangers, security trustee and lenders, a term
loan facility of HK$1,500,000,000 (the “Facility A Loan”) and a revolving loan
facility of HK$500,000,000 (the “Facility B Loan’, together with the Facility A
Loan, the “Loan Facilities”) are made available to the Company. The Facility A
Loan is repayable as to 5%, 5%, 10%, 10%, 10%, 10%, 15%, 15%, and 20% on
the days which are 18 months, 21 months, 24 months, 27 months, 30 months,
33 months, 36 months, 39 months and 42 months respectively from the date
of the Facilities Agreement. Each loan under the Facility B Loan is repayable
at the last day of its interest period, being one or two weeks, or one or three
months or any other period agreed between the Company and the lenders
provided that it shall not extend beyond 42 months from the date of the
Facilities Agreement. The Loan Facilities have been used to refinance the
HKS$900 million term loan facility granted to the Company in 2010 in full and

thereafter finance the general corporate purposes of the Company.

It is provided in the Facilities Agreement that if at any time, either (i) any
person or group of persons acting in concert hold more voting share capital
of the Company than Amcor Limited does; or (i) without limitation to (i)
above, Amcor Limited fails to maintain its beneficial ownership, direct or
indirect, of not less than: (a) thirty five per cent. (35%) of the shareholding
of the Company or (b) only in the event of dilution in Amcor Limited’s
shareholding due to any share placements by the Company, twenty five per
cent. (25%) of the shareholding of the Company, it will constitute an event
of default as a result of which all or any part of the commitments under the
Loan Facilities may be cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan

Facilities may immediately become due and payable.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or

existed during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 89% of the total sales for the year
and the sales attributable to the largest customer included therein accounted

for approximately 41%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five larges suppliers
accounted for approximately 37% of the total purchases for the year and the
purchase attributable to the larges supplier included therein accounted for

approximately 11%.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a) Director’s interests and short positions in the securities of

@2 HE
(a) BEBRAARRHEAM Az ESF

the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2013, the following Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had or were deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong ("SFO"))
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

ZHEmNRIKR
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H TIXRH
EFHTRTRABRARRE REMBE
B (ERxREBEMNFSNE(ERHFLRAE K
) (785 R EIE D) EXVER) 2B -
MR EEZETEA IR AER IR
BESRPERMEXVEE7RSD B AR
MARRB LB Rz EsgAR (BRES
RIBE 7 LB RD] 2 52 FRERIN B
BIEHBE 2 BREIAR)  HRBEFH K
HIE G PIE3521EAREN RGP ZE
et 2 EOXR ¢ SKGINRE LT R AIAR
BT RAEFETESFXHNIRETA

Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules:

No. of underlying

BAARB) LB R PrZ ESSRR

Approximate

percentage of

issued share

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held (Note) Position capital
HEBT

FrfsEE BRABEH

R EEME ROEHB (M) ¥ B
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Beneficial owner 30,000,000 Long 3.25%
BR-(E A BEEBEAA TR 3.25%
Mr. Ge Su Beneficial owner 1,168,285 Long 0.13%
B#iE BmiaA HaE 0.13%
Mr. Ng Sai Kit Beneficial owner 22,500,000 Long 2.44%
REARELE E=fEAA TR 2.44%
Note: The underlying shares represent share options granted by the Company, BT ABRARR M I A D R L 2 AR - S EYIR

further details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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(b) Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2013, the following persons (not being
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

(b) RIEFZ R ERPIEXVERE 23D
AR ERRASKXRE ZAL
BARREFREIETBRABRM  R-F
—=F+ZA=+—H8  BAFAL (W3R
REIZEEHTIBTHAR) R IEREE
Bt Fh A AR R A IRIBE S M E F
I EXVERF 230 B 2 RE BRI AR R K&

B PrIRE s OR R

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held Position capital
HEBT
RABEL
REREH 13 FEsROBE y-¥- Botk
Amcor Limited (Note) (Fft3) Interest of controlled 442,550,000 Long 47.94%
corporation
EESEE R 442,550,000 HE
Amcor Packaging (Asia) Interest of controlled 442,550,000 Long 47.94%
Pty Limited (Note) (Fif&E) corporation
RELEEE R 442,550,000 e
Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Beneficial owner 442,550,000 Long 47.94%
Pte Limited (Note) (Bf&E)
EmEAA 442,550,000 HE
Prudential plc Interest of controlled 89,801,000 Long 9.73%
corporation
R EEE R 89,801,000 HE
Mondrian Investment Partners Investment manager 63,781,000 Long 6.91%
Limited
REKE 63,781,000 WA
M&G Investment Funds (7) Beneficial owner 59,951,000 Long 6.49%
BmBEAA 59,951,000 TR
Ameriprise Financial Inc Interest of controlled 47,584,000 Long 5.15%
corporation
REtEEE R 47,584,000 wE

Note: The issued shares of Amcor Limited are listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited. Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited and Amcor Fibre
Packaging-Asia Pte Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of Amcor
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors were not
aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE - HEFBELEARAF2L™

COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES &5
The Company repurchased a total of 1,176,000 shares on the Stock Exchange HE2-_T—=F+-A=+—BLFE AR
during the year ended 31 December 2013. Details of the repurchases are as RIRBESZ P [E A H1,176,0000% A% 1 » B ZF1E

follows: PORNE

Repurchase price
per share
BRBOEER
Total number

of shares Highest Lowest Total paid
Date of repurchases BEME B repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
AT RIE
- 4= BS =33 B
IR B BT BT BT
20 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=+H 248,000 3.5995 3.595 892,640
23 December 2013 —E-=F+ZAZ+=H 60,000 361 361 216,600
27 December 2013 —E-=F+ZA=++tH 468,000 3.74 3.67 1,725,740
30 December 2013 —E2—=F+-HA=+H 378,000 3.73 3.67 1,408,660
31 December 2013 —E-=F+ZA=+—H 22,000 3.70 3.69 81,380
1,176,000 4,325,020
The repurchased shares above were yet to be cancelled as at 31 December N-_ZTE—=F+—_A=+—H "  LitzEOK

2013 MRS -

The repurchase of the Company’s shares during the year was effected by the FARERANATRDITHEEREAQRRRE
Directors, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the shareholders R-ZE—=FXA+=A8F27REAFEFAL
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 13 June 2013, with a TREFELNEEET BEREBBIIRESAER
view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value CEREEFERGRETMEXREIRRER -

per share and earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has BEXFEBEEN REBEE-_Z—=F+=A
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during =+—RHLEFE  ARBIHEEAHER R
the year ended 31 December 2013. mEEE HENEBRIARNT ZEM LMES -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive Directors do not have a fixed term of appointment but their
appointment can be terminated by either party by serving not less than
one month's notice in writing. All Non-executive Directors (including the
Non-executive Chairman and the Independent Non-executive Directors) have

a fixed term of appointment of two years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save and except for those disclosed under the paragraph headed “Related
party transactions” above, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Director’s interests and short
positions in the securities of the Company and its associated corporations”
under the section headed "Disclosure of interests” above and in the section
headed “Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director, or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include any employees, directors, substantial shareholders of
each member of the Group or associated company or any of their respective
associates. The Share Option Scheme has become effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 10 March 2004 and up to 40,000,000 options entitling
the holders thereof to subscribe for up to 40,000,000 shares could be granted

under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each grantee provided that the period within which the shares
may be taken up under the option must not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant of the option. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved before an

option can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion provided that such
price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
grant of an option, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant, and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of

the grant of an option.
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The following table shows the movements in the Company’s share options

outstanding during the year:

FARRRRETERBIREZ ZBFIN N TX

Number of share options
BREHE
Closing price
per share
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise  immediately
At 1 January during during during during 31 December  Exercise period priceper  before date
Name or category of grantee 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 (Note1) share (Note 3) of grant
R-B-=F =1 SERH
R=B-=F TZA TRER A2
ERALEZAER -B-8 ERRE  FREAE Rz ERXR =t-B {6 (M) (WiE3)  BRYUWE
Directors
EE
Mr. Chan Sai Wai (Note 2) 40,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 30,000,000 29 July 2012 to HKS3.64 HKS4.73
RitREE (M) 27 July 2001 3648 4T3ET
“E-F
tAZThBEZE
—E--F
tAZTR
Mr. Ge Su 1,068,285 - - - 500,000 1,168,285 29 July 201210 HKS3.64 HKS4.73
BEHAE 27 July 2021 I4ET 4T3BTC
“E--F
tAZTNRE
—Zo-
tAZTR
Mr. Ng Sai Kit (Note 2) 30,000,000 - - - 7,500,000 22500000 29 July 2012 to HK$3.64 HKS4.73
RUAEE (Mi0) 27 July 2001 64T 4T3ETL
“F-F
tAZThRZE
—3--F
tA-t+H
Sub-total 71,668,285 - - - 18,000,000 53,668,285
dot
Employees (other than 13,348,703 - - - 3494943 9853760 29 July 2012 to HKS3.64 HKS4.73
Directors) in aggregate 27 July 2021 IG4HET AT3ET
EELT (EERD) it 3
tAZThRZ
“ET-F
tA-t+tA
Total 85,016,983 - - - 21,494,943 63,522,045
3t
Notes: Mgt

1. The share options will be vested to the grantees over a period of four years
(i.e. one-fourth on or after 29 July 2012, one-fourth on or after 29 July 2013,
one-fourth on or after 29 July 2014 and one-fourth on or after 29 July 2015) upon
fulfillment of certain annual key performance indicators set and/or to be set by

the Board.
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2. Since: (i) the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each of Mr. Chan Sai Wai and Mr. Ng Sai Kit respectively
in 2011 exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue, and (ii) the number of
share options granted to either of them would exceed the scheme mandate limit
of 40,000,000 share options, such grant of share options to Mr. Chan Sai Wai and
Mr. Ng Sai Kit have been approved by shareholders of the Company at the general
meeting held on 12 September 2011.

3. The exercise price of the share options is reduced from HK$4.72 per share to
HK$3.64 per share pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2013.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 9 March 2014 and no further share
option can be granted thereunder. In order to enable the continuity of the
share scheme of the Company, a new share option scheme will be proposed
to be adopted at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Details of the new share option scheme will be contained in the circular to

be despatched together with this annual report.

Details of the valuation of the repricing of share options are set out in note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company also adopted an employees’ share award scheme (the
"Employees’ Share Award Scheme”) in June 2007 for the purposes of
recognising the contributions by certain employees, providing them
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Under the Employees’ Share Award Scheme,
the Company may make advance to purchase the shares (the "Awarded
Shares”) of the Company to be awarded to certain employees of the Group
in accordance with the terms and conditions imposed by the Board. The
Employees’ Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years. Pursuant to the Employees’ Share Award Scheme, an administrator has
been appointed to administer the scheme and hold the Awarded Shares.
On or after the vesting date, the participant employees shall be entitled to
sell in whole or in part of his/her Awarded Shares through the administrator
and receive the gain or bear the loss on the disposal of the Awarded Shares,
being the excess of sales proceeds over the acquisition costs of the Awarded
Shares purchased by the Company, the loan interests and the related income

attributable to the Awarded Shares disposed.

Up to 31 December 2013, an aggregate of 28,484,000 Awarded Shares
were acquired by the Company by way of advances for the benefits of the

employees under the Employees’ Share Award Scheme.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK8.2 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: HK9.2 cents) to be payable to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as at 24
June 2014. Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 12 June
2014, the said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
around 31 July 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following

periods:

1. from Monday, 9 June 2014 to Wednesday, 11 June 2014 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfers of shares will be registered,
for ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, 12 June
2014. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, all transfer shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (or at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong effective from 31 March 2014), not later than 4:.00 p.m.
on Friday, 6 June 2014; and

2. from Monday, 23 June 2014 to Tuesday, 24 June 2014 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfers of shares will be registered,
for ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013. In order to be eligible to
receive the proposed final dividend, all transfer shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (or at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong effective from 31 March 2014), not later
than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 20 June 2014.

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013
SEEHEAL AR A &) AMVIG Holdings Limited

KRB E

RAAREEGRFAR-_Z—WNFNA=Z+H
BEIWAARBREEGMZ AR AREREHE
ZE—=FFT A=+ —HIEFEZRARE
FR82B M (ZZT—Z4F : 92/8(l) - FAAQFA
BRERAZZT—OFSATZARITZERERRE
BERE L#ER  ElRRBAREHENR T —
WELA=+—BAEIRN TARAFRER o

EENERDBERETCFE

AR E 2z IR A S A T 51 3 P B £ 4 3 AR £
BENELTE

—E-WFENANB(EH—) E=2—0O
FRNAT—R(EHZ) (ERMABER
W) - RIULBREIRA - AR RIETEEITE
ARHZ BB UWEERELEFEER
—E-WMESA+T=B (EHW) 872 pE
ERFBEFASI NS FIREZEF - 040
HeHREERRBFASUNE LIEZ
B AR RRRGBE X HERABRER
ENBPREAR-ZZE—NFNANE (B
HiR) T MEFEATAR AR B 2 EERD
MPELYRPEDSFELARAT - Mt
BEBEIT2EKNER8HSEEFR 260
(KBFBL R RBER1835A M 0228 (f
—E-ME=ZA=1+—H#K)) &
ZE-NMFEAAZ+t=H(EH—) E=Z
—HFEARAZTHE (EHZ) (FEMAE
EAER) - REBBHEAR AQREIEH
TR 2 BF B » AR T IR IEL
HE-Z—=F+-A=+—HILFEHER
REARE B 2 R  Q0AR A UCEU R R 2AAR
BB  AARRRROBEXHERA
BRENBPRIEER-_ZT—WNF A=+
B(E#SA) TFMNBEMEIARAZE
BEROBPFELIEEZEESFELZERA
A it AEBET 2R KBRS ERE
02618 (BB 2R ARIEFR18IHAFF O
NE(HZZ—NF=A=+—Hi)) -



PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share

capital was held by the public as at 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report”in this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”) on 10 March
2004 for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision on the financial

reporting process and internal control system of the Group.

The Committee comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors

with Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith acting as Chairman.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 together with the notes attached thereto have
been reviewed by the Committee, which was of the opinion that such
statements complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been

made.
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AUDITORS

RSM Nelson Wheeler will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Nelson Wheeler
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

There is no change in auditors of the Company since the first appointment
on 1 December 2003.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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# Independent Auditor’s Report

J8 S A il R

RSM

Audit « Tax - Advisory

>

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AMVIG HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMVIG Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 99 to 178, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T3 ST AT SR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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Profit or Loss
HaEmE

Consolidated Statement of

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z—=F+"_A=1+—HILFE
2013 2012
—g—= —EF—=
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B e FET FHT
Turnover [=E 2] 6 3,762,377 3,596,117
Cost of goods sold FHE A (2,663,534) (2,516,036)
Gross profit EF 1,098,843 1,080,081
Other income HAalg A 6 90,742 58,901
Selling and distribution costs THE R sHA A (181,566) (189,367)
Administrative expenses THAX (267,283) (255,548)
Other operating expenses HAb AL 2 F 2 (1,089) (1,606)
Finance costs Y ®N 7 (65,510) (50,634)
Share of profits of associates FE(H BN B A 41,523 50,960
Profit before tax A0 % A 8 715,660 692,787
Income tax expenses S BiRx 11 (276,130) (238,684)
Profit for the year AE B F 439,530 454,103
Attributable to: A& 75 el
Owners of the Company. ZiN/NCIEZ 2= DN 392,325 415,776
Non-controlling interests FEPE I MR 2 47,205 38,327
Earnings per share BRAEF
— Basic (HK cents) — FA () 12(a) 425 450
- Diluted (HK cents) — ¥ (OB1) 12(b) N/A FiE N/A A3 F
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# Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A H g S H At 2 e 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2013

&

EY

TE—=F+-A=t+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year AR E B A 439,530 454,103
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wz -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: BB SRR m A EE
Exchange gain on translating foreign HMEINI TS 2 [ 5 W am
operations 108,748 10,282
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEE G
the year, net of tax (EHBRHIE) 108,748 10,282
Total comprehensive income for REERHEINZHEEE
the year 548,278 464,385
Attributable to: AR & 75 FE4E -
Owners of the Company AARER A 495,470 424,003
Non-controlling interests FEE I M 2 52,808 40,382
548,278 464,385
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# Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

A 3 S 55 IR D

At 31 December 2013

RZE—=F+-A=+—H

2013 2012
—EB—=F —E——F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BfsE FExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 14 706,385 720,207
Prepaid land lease payments B E A 15 22,182 22,327
Goodwill [EES 16 2,728,611 2,656,132
Interests in associates REtE N 2w 17 141,203 138,360
Available-for-sale financial assets Tt E S REE 18 1,766 1,719
Loan receivables and other assets BUWERREMEE 19 255,639 306,385
3,855,786 3,845,130
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 20 419,044 477,249
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A fE W IR 21 622,888 862,115
Prepaid land lease payments FEMEE T FE 15 755 735
Prepayments and deposits FENFIERIES 37,756 45,638
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRITIFR 22 5,375 14,516
Bank and cash balances HR1T IR B AR 22 2,269,764 1,247,448
3,355,582 2,647,701
TOTAL ASSETS EEST 7,211,368 6,492,831
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital A% A 26 9,231 9,231
Reserves s 28 3,945,518 3,620,556
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHEB AELER
the Company 3,954,749 3,629,787
Non-controlling interests FEFE G MR 2 215,892 200,653
Total equity AR5 4,170,641 3,830,440
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R IR LR R
2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
ih=2 FET THET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Bank borrowings RITRER 24 1,540,124 1,547,599
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 25 18,539 80,947
1,558,663 1,628,546
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 & E b fE 518 23 939,380 991,838
Current tax liabilities AEAR B EE 105,300 42,007
Current portion of bank borrowings RITERZREE D 24 437,384 -
1,482,064 1,033,845
Total liabilities EEAE 3,040,727 2,662,391
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAEERE 7,211,368 6,492,831
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,873,518 1,613,856
Total assets less current liabilities EEATERABERS 5,729,304 5,458,986

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014

Chan Chew Keak, Billy
B R

Chairman

e
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# Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
LEARERS BB

For the year ended 31 December 2013

nE=%

—=E+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAERARL
Employee Foreign
share-based currency Non-
Share Share Treasury Special compensation translation  Revaluation Statutory Retained controlling
capital premium shares reserve resrve reserve reserve Teserves profits Total interests ~ Total equity
HEfzfz

Rk ROEE  BERG  GHRE REMERE MEIREE  ERER  iREE  REEY & FEHMER  RRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR THR ThR Th TR TR THR THR THR THR
At 1 January 2012 R-%--£-f-H 9231 2485151 = (731,043 21,604 648428 8010 168,362 1744510 4354253 190834 4,545,087
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERANGEE - - - - - 8207 - - 415776 44003 4038 464385
Transfer from retained profits - Group Bia %E,ﬁﬂ 7,1(%@ - - - = = - - 6090 (6,090) - - -
Dividend paid for 2011 (Note 13) %HzE- (ﬂﬂawa, - - - - - - - - (99,700) (99,700) - (99700)
Dividends paid for 2012 (Note 13) ft-E--ERE (W33 - - - - - - - (1078236 (1,078236) - (1078.36)
Dividend paid to non-controlling sharefolders S f3E, JM%@ - - - - - - - - - - (30563) (30563)

Employee share-based compensation Wi fi2 EEMERH
benefis (Note 29 (Biit2) - - - 29467 - - - - 29467 - 29467
Changes in equity for the year TEERERY - - - 29467 8207 - 6090 (768,250) (724466) 9819 (714647)
At 31 December 2012 RZF-—§+-A=1-A 9,231 2,485,151 ° (731,083) 51,0Mm 656,655 8,010 174,452 976260 3,629,787 200653 3,830,440
Total comprehensie income fo the e AERRENEER = = - - -3 - 0035 49540 S2808 548078
Transfer from retained profis - Group BRARERH - 158 = - - - - - - 3375 (3375) - - -
Dividend paid for 2012 (Note 13) FH=E-ZFRE (W) - - - - - - - - (84930) (84930 = (84930)
Dividend paid for 2013 (Note 13) EHZE-ZERE (W) - - - - - - - - (8137 (61.231) - (8137)
Dividend paid to non-controlling sharefolders X fi7EHERRRE - - - - - - - - - - (37,569) (37,569)
Putchase of treasury shares (Note 26) BEEBRHR (W) - - (4341) - - - - - - (4341) - (4.341)
Changes in equity for the year REEERES - - (4341) - - 103,145 - 3375 22783 324,962 15,239 340,201
At31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-f=1-A 9,31 2,485,151 (4:341) (731,043) 51,07 759,800 8,010 177821 1,199,043 3,954,749 215,892 4,170,641
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# Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Mrtjﬂ%éﬁbw

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BHE_—Z

—=E+-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax T B & F 715,660 692,787
Adjustments for: BLATIE B B %
Share of profit of associates FE(REE & R Elm A (41,523) (50,960)
Finance costs & R AR 65,510 50,634
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B S EWGRIA 2
impairment losses on trade CREEsIERE)
receivables RIEEE (52) 87
Write down of inventories WoREE 732 378
Depreciation e 95,856 83,908
Net loss on disposals of property, HEWE -
plant and equipment B K&l 2 2 EE 2,665 2,767
Interest income FMEHA (38,464) (30,194)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TETHEE IR 2 B 5
payments 745 726
Employee shared-based compensation LARRAD 2 5 2 (2 B B & 42 A
benefits - 29,467
Operating profit before working Rt & EE S LB F 2 L& T
capital changes 801,129 779,600
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(Lm) 57,473 (61,526)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 REMBERFERL
other receivables € 239,279 (293,270)
Decrease in prepayments and deposits TERFERESRD 54,896 12,173
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 REMBEAZE (D),
other payables 3N (52,458) 314,023
Cash generated from operations REKEEHNIRE 1,100,319 751,000
Income taxes paid SIS HR (216,161) (195,098)
Withholding taxes paid S TEIR (62,406) (38,969)
Net cash generated from operating REKEEGHIRE T8
activities 821,752 516,933
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HOBERRR
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES RETBHHRERE
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BERBIRITEZORD (38 0)
deposits 9,141 (14,516)
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE  BELRE
equipment (57,913) (146,418)
Payments of deposits for other assets EMEEZFISNR (15,151) (14,098)
Dividend received from associates B R RIIRE 42,444 59,847
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYZE - BB R&FEFTERUR
plant and equipment 6,569 4,569
Interest received BEHFHE 38,464 30,194
Repayment of loan receivables JEWEFER 5,042 56,190
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEREE, (FR)
investing activities RIR & 558 28,596 (24,232)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlamRg

2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings repaid BRIRITIERK = (1,010,000)
Bank borrowings raised FERIBITER 420,000 1,552,000
Interest paid SRS (55,517) (31,534)
Purchase of non-controlling interests LA B FE 428 1) 1 FE 2 - (235,082)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company SRR RERS AR E (166,167) (1,177,936)
Dividend paid to non-controlling AT IR HI AR R AR B
shareholders (37,569) (30,563)
Purchase of treasury shares BEEFRG (4,341) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBELE (EA)
financing activities RIR & 558 156,406 (933,115)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH REeRBELEEYHNEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RY) F8 1,006,754 (440,414)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MR B E) 2 R 2 15,562 (27,479)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BHWREREEZEY
AT 1 JANUARY 1,247,448 1,715,341
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—A=+—HHEEK
AT 31 DECEMBER RELEEY 2,269,764 1,247,448
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRESEEYNIN
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIB SRR 2,269,764 1,247,448
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1.

Statements
BRI S R B

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 27 November 2003 under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The address
of its principal place of business is Room 601-602, 6th Floor, Top Glory
Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on
1 January 2013. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and amounts reported

for the current year and prior years except as stated below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo i B 25 e M

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

a.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for statement
of comprehensive income and income statement that has been
applied by the Group. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
statement of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in

two separate but consecutive statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same

basis.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the change. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other

comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

b. HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” specifies the
disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements
and associates, and introduces new disclosure requirements for

unconsolidated structured entities.

The adoption of HKFRS 12 only affects the disclosures relating to the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates in the consolidated financial

statements. HKFRS 12 has been applied retrospectively.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results

of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the

historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It
also requires the Directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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3.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant

activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-

controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

112

(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the

acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase which is attributed to the Group.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy (e) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the

purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the

acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to

exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

114

(c) Associates (continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated other comprehensive income.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses

not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss
of significant influence represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of
the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the

equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS$, which is the Company’s presentation
currency. The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"). The Directors consider that choosing HKS as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the shareholders

and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates

when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

116

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

3. TEEFHE (&)
(d) SMEE5IR (4F)

(i) MERAIRE RFHHRE

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company'’s

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign

currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss as

part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except goodwill,
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of

the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

118

(f)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is recognised on
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered

and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Employee benefits

120

(i)

(i)

(i

=

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions

payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs

and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Employee share-based compensation benefits

The Group issues employee share-based compensation benefits to

certain directors and employees.

Employee share-based compensation benefits to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the employee share-based compensation benefits is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
appropriate to write off their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years
Office equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery
pending installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo i B 25 e M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss.

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013
SEREHZRAL A BR A 7] AMVIG Holdings Limited

3. TEGFHE (&)

(n)

F&
FEmRARTBEFEREDRE
B AR o AT IR INAE T EEE
MERBRERMZIKAEBERY
B BERTIENRABZEE LAIE
BZEZRERE (MER) ABE - 7]
BHRFERNEFXEBBRES A5
EERMAFTTEIXNARAFLERT
BEAZRAGE -

BRAREBUEERAERTA

CREENRERABRAKEERAST
B2 B NGR 20T BRI

Mt EEWDIRSREZ S WEME
- AEEEREERAE BRI
DEBRKEOH  HAREL REEK
REBEERBRZBREDRER KD
HEETBREEE ZIEHE - A
EREESFIUEER - RBUBHER
TRMEER  BERMENRDKRAE
BEE RN H A2 WS AR Z 25t
BRZZRDNBEARER

EEMAKMIIRETERE T
HEmE - ERAESREBOBTER
BUHR 2 RARKREEED MK
BRIz ZBENBRAER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
not classified as trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other comprehensive income, until
the investments are disposed of or there is objective evidence
that the investments are impaired, at which time the gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve are reclassified to profit or
loss. Dividend, foreign exchange gain/loss and interest calculated

using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity investments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are not subsequently
reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of

the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo i B 25 e M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Investments (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of

each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also included as a

component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out in (t) to (v) below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo i B 25 e M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(w) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to

the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3.

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the

sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(z) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. KEY ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual
values, and related depreciation charges for the Group's property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period was approximately HK$2,728,611,000. Details
of the Group's goodwill are stated in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

(@)

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other receivables
and loan receivables, including the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history and securities (if any) of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment loss on receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and loan receivables and impairment loss on

receivables in the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for inventories and net realisable value of
inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the aging and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of
the allowance amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-down/write-back in the year in which such estimate has been

changed.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to the serve market environment. The Group will reassess

the estimates by the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. KEY ESTIMATES (continued)
(e) Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provisions for
income taxes and deferred tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred

tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Directors have
established management policies, guidelines and control procedures to

manage the Group's exposure to such risks.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of respective Group
entities, such as HKS and USD. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IR
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BIEKMER (&)

(@) Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2013, if the RMB had weakened 3% (2012: 1%)
against HKS and USD with all other variables held constant, the
impact on consolidated profit after tax are summarised in the
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 3% (2012: 1%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number indicates an increase in consolidated profit after
tax and negative number indicates a decrease in consolidated profit
after tax. If the RMB had strengthened 3% (2012: 1%) against HKS
and USD with all other variables held constant, there would be an

equal and opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax.

) SNERER ()

R-Z—=F+-A=+—8" A
RERBTRETREN (ZF—=
F %) RBAEEMATERRRE
T HREHBENZFER TR
Bt - 1t SRR E 3 AT B AR R LR HIME
FHEERIEE  YRFRM3% (=F
—IF %) ZIEEREHHEE
BE - FHBREABREEMEM

REABTRETHEN (ZE—=
F 1 1%) - REFTA H ] 8 EXREF
T8 BHEAKERIELEREE

%
Impact of HK$ Impact of USD
BT En¥
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —T——F ZZE—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T FHET T
Consolidated profit after tax LA RA (43,892)® (8,757) 40 20

(i)  This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange loss on loan receivables,
bank and cash balances, other payables and bank borrowing
denominated in HKS.

(i)~ This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange gain on bank and cash
balances and other payables denominated in USD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances including
pledged bank deposits, trade and other receivables, deposits and
loan receivables included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has policies in place and the exposure
to credit risk is managed through the application of credit
approvals, credit limits and monitoring process. The Group’s senior
management performs on-going credit evaluation and regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised

for irrecoverable debts.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances including pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are well-established

financial institutions.

Loan receivables from employees as disclosed in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements will be repaid when the shares
awarded to the employees, which are held by an administrator
appointed by the Company, are disposed of. The Group's senior
management performs regular review on the recoverable amount
of loan receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are

recognised.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BIEKMER (&)

(c) Liquidity risk REE SR
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected REEBZBERTHERRAE RTEH

liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:

ZnBECHTE  UHERHERRIA
ENEHEREERDESTREZR
B

Z

MEEZEBHASTWOT

Between 1 Between 2
Less than 1 year and 2 years and 5 years
—5R —EZF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THERT FET
At 31 December 2013 R=B—=%
+=—A=+—H
Bank borrowing RITIER 489,124 776,208 801,189
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EAth FE R 939,380 - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z%F
+=-A=+—H”
Bank borrowing RITER 45,621 467,717 1,150,989
Trade and other payables B 5 K HALFE IR 991,838 - -

(d) Interest rate risk

d) ==& b

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HKS$1,751,064,000 (2012: HK$972,838,000) bear
interest at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risks. The Directors consider the Group's exposure to
interest rate risk on the bank deposits is not significant as interest

bearing bank balances are within short maturity period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-
rate bank borrowings which bear interest at variable rates varied

with then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2013, if the interest rate had been 100 basis points
(2012: 100 basis points) lower, with all other variables held constant,
the impact on consolidated profit after tax is summarised in the
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding bank
borrowings and adjusts the respective interest rates at the year
end of 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points). A positive number
indicates an increase in consolidated profit after tax. If the interest
rate had been 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points) higher,
with all other variables held constant, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax and the balances

below would be negative.

Gk B AR B

MEERER (&)
) MEER ()

AEBZHEERMNERKREZRZS
RITEZRERE  ZERTEFREE
BT IRIZ B RET B o

%:%*:¢+—ﬂ:+*a~ﬁﬂ
ETRERI00fEEE (= —4F : 100H
%%)’“WEEMT AR ERIFT
g HEREHERMNZZERTRE
oo S BRE ST EEREERITE
R WA AR AR FE I 100 E E B
ZE—ZF 1008 EE) - EEBT
RATEEFIEI o WFI = _EF1001E
I (2T ——F - 100fEHEE) @ BR
FTE HAh Al & AR RFTE - KEE
SRR MNECRASEELE M~
Bl s BA R -

2013 2012

—B-=F —F-=F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET T

Consolidated profit after tax SEEBEET 16,512 12,9220

(i)  This is mainly a result of the decrease in interest expenses on bank
borrowings.

() UWFEBIEHRTERZHSFAZTE
P o
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FR A S R B
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. MBRKRER (&2)
(e) Categorises of financial instruments as at 31 December e) AT-ZHA=+t—He®MIEZH
ball
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Financial assets: SWMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A E CmEE 1,766 1,719
Loans and receivables (including cash BERKERZE (81
and cash equivalents) HeRRESEEBY) 3,138,515 2,369,352
Financial liabilities: SRIBE:
Financial liabilities measured at RS AT 2 2
amortised cost THMEE 2,916,888 2,539,437
(f) Fair value f A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial RE MBI R NP E A B S Fh
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial EEASHABECREERESER
position approximate their respective fair values. FEAEE ©
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6. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME

The Group is principally engaged in the printing of cigarette packages

and manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film. An analysis of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok B S 25 R i

6. EXRBRAEMUYA

AEBETENEEERKHRRBEHAR
BHERE  ARBEZEXBEREME

Group's turnover and other income is as follows: ADITIAT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Turnover g
Printing of cigarette packages B 12 B2 R 3,716,141 3,557,164
Manufacturing of transfer paper and LR LIRS R RS
laser film 46,236 38,953
3,762,377 3,596,117
Other income EMA
Gain on sales of scrapped materials SHE BERL 2 e 5,088 4,676
Interest income NN 38,464 30,194
Compensation received B E 171 229
Government grants received BB ERG
— Unconditional grants relating to — BHAERAEE 2 &
expenses item e 2,236 3,503
Net exchange gain bE H W) F 5 42,723 11,472
Sundry income FETAUT A 2,060 8,827
90,742 58,901
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERA
2013 2012
—E-—=F —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT AT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 65,510 50,634
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

Bt Al 73

AEE 2 BAREFIE MR (GEA) A TFE

B :

2013 2012
—E—= —EF—_4F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Auditor’s remuneration 2 3,000 3,000
Cost of goods sold (Note) SHEEMAKA (M) 2,663,534 2,516,036
Depreciation e 95,856 83,908
Net exchange gain b 5 W) F /R (42,723) (11,472)
Net loss on disposals of property, LEYE - BER&HEZ
plant and equipment FEE 2,665 2,767
Operating lease rentals in respect of land, Bt BERKREZ
buildings and equipment KEHERES 30,279 25,476
Research and development costs fift 78 R B B A AR 635 225
Staff costs including Directors’ BT RKA
emoluments (BEESH2)
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances — e - JEALRERL 344,192 298,154
— Employee share-based compensation — Rt 2z
benefits EEMEET - 29,467
- Retirement benefits scheme — R RE NGB
contributions 16,445 14,221
360,637 341,842
Write down of inventories MWRGFEE 732 378
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Gk B AR B

8. BiAN&EA (&

Note: Cost of goods sold includes the following which are also included in the

Mt SHEBRRABE TIIRE - THEREE

respective amounts disclosed separately above: EXSTHE 2 EEE
2013 2012
—E-—=£ —E—_4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Depreciation e 86,944 74,731

Operating lease rentals in respect of land, BRI  BFREREZ

buildings and equipment REMEHES 21,575 17,356
Loss on disposal of fixed assets LEETEEZEE 2,817 =
Staff costs 8 TR 188,691 162,708
Write down of inventories HoRFEE 732 378

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

9. EERERITHAEME

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and LA BRE LR A R BB R REHFIZE 161
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows: FEE EEME -
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——4F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEIT FHIT
Fees ik
Non-executive directors IEHMITES 1,243 1,244
Independent non-executive directors BYIEITES 2,652 2,656
Other emoluments E Bl
Executive directors HITES
— Basic salaries, allowances and —EXHe - ER
benefits in kind EWEi 35,212 22,626
— Employee share-based compensation — RO ERNZIEE
benefits =l - 27,170
— Retirement benefits scheme — BRIREFEFEIHER
contributions 31 31
39,138 53,727
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012 are set out below:

9. EENSRITRAEME (&)

BREEREBE_Z

—=FRZFT—=F

TZA=+T—BLEFEZME&HIIWT

Salaries Employee  Retirement

and share-based benefits

other Discretionary compensation scheme
Fees benefits bonuses benefits  contributions Total

DY)

¥eR xfizEE  RIER
#e  HMEER 0 BERL O MERM  FEHX Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR AR TER TAR TERL TARL

Name of Director EEng

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy BRETE 491 - - - = 491
Mr. Chan Sai Wal REERE - 10,000 8,000 - 15 18,015
Mr. Ng Sai Kit RIEALE - 7,500 6,000 - 15 13,515
Mr. Ge Su EELE - 3,068 644 - 1 3713
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Ralf Klaus Wunderlich% & 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith HEEA 905 - - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BEAERE 874 - - - - 874
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEELE 873 - - - - 873
Total for 2013 T-CERE 3,895 20,568 14,644 - 31 39,138

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013

SEREHZRAL A BR A 7] AMVIG Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G T B R R B R
9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENREBRITHRAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Salaries Employee Retirement
and share-based benefits
other  Discretionary compensation scheme
Fees benefits bonuses benefits  contributions Total
IARR TR
e R xfizEE  RAKER
#e  HbEN  BETL MeR e &t

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThT TR TR T TiEn g

Name of Director EEnE

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy BRETE 492 = = = = 492
Mr. Chan Sai Wai Bttt &L e - 6,369 5,200 15,362 14 26945
Mr. Ng Sai Kit REAREE - 4500 3900 11522 14 19,936
Mr. Ge Su BELE - 2446 211 286 3 2,946
Mr. Ralf Klaus Wunderlich Ralf Klaus Wunderlich 2t & 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak 4 376 - - - - 376
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BELE 907 - - - - 907
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BBRELE 875 - - = - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEEEE 874 - - _ _ 874
Total for 2012 —E-—EpE 3,900 13315 9311 27,170 31 53727
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year include

three (2012: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2012:

two) individuals are set out below:

EERERITHRAEME (&)

FARKEZABREHALTEFTE=S
(ZT—Z%F:=8) REZE " REZHE
RREEXFARZANA - HEmE (ZF
——FWB) ALZHEEIIWT ¢

2013 2012
—E—= —EF—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Basic salaries and other benefits EAFH e REAET 9,600 6,300
Discretionary bonuses EYIFIEAL 7,210 4,850
Employee share-based compensation LARS (7 2 1+ 2 & & Bl & 48 7

benefits - 143
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BOKEFIFT SR 30 28
16,840 11,321

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BleNF 17 &EE :

Number of individuals

BAAB
2013 2012
=B =% —E——4F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T 2 3,500,00078 7T 1 -
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7T 28,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 13,500,001 75 2 14,000,00078 7T 1 =

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any emoluments during the year. In addition, no emoluments

were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the highest paid

individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,000 until 31
May 2012 and HK$1,250 commencing from 1 June 2012 per employee

and vest fully with employees when contributed into MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") are members of a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the required

contributions under the scheme.

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES

fok B S 25 R i

10. R K1ERIGT 2

REBMBEEBAH ERABRTEEG A
BEMAAERESRIBRTEATRS
Zl ([afEestEll) - AEERAERFE
ZERTBEEEFERITEZ%:TE
BEEESALREE-_T—-FRA=
+—HR1,0008T  BZE——FHA—
BiEAESREEB208T  (EHBRESH
B % - HARBIEREEME -

RRABNPEARKNE (TR Kz
ME DA ZIES Bt TBNERE 2 F R
BRAFEKE - WEMBRRAMNER
EAXHFeRIEZETAD LAFRENK
SREIEFERBRARBANES - T WK
R EGE A FE L S E A RIPT B IR A MR K
RAREBE ZRIKBHNEY - HEHE R
LR RBAKRE B 2 —RERREE
TR K o

M. FrEFHExX

2013 2012
=t —E——fF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
PRC corporate income tax and R ERTS R R
withholding tax TEHFIR
— Provision for the year — RNEEEE 282,032 240,374
— (Over)/under provision in prior year — LFE (BERRE),/
BiET e (3,113) 317
Other deferred tax (Note 25) HAthiRERIE (FiaE25) (2,789) (2,001)
276,130 238,684

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has

no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the years.

R ERFEASEER AT ERRT G
A R L BB RSB B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect
thereof.

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New CIT Law"), which
became effective from 1 January 2008, the standard corporate income
tax rate is 25%.

On 26 December 2007, the State of Council of the PRC passed “Notice
on the Implementation of Corporation Income Tax Transition Preferential
Treatment” (“Notice on Transition Period”) Guofa (2007) No. 39 (“Circular
39") which sets out details of how existing preferential income tax
rates will be adjusted to the 25% standard rate under the New CIT Law.
According to the Notice on Transition Period, certain PRC enterprises of
the Group with tax holiday not fully utilised will be allowed to continue
to receive benefits of the full exemption from a reduction in income tax
rate until expiry of the tax holiday, after which, the 25% standard rate
under the New CIT Law will apply.

Circular 39 also states that the existing preferential income tax rate of
18% in 2008 pertaining to certain subsidiaries will be adjusted to the
standard rate of 25% in 2012 progressively.

According to the certificate issued by the Yunnan Province Science
and Technology Bureau on 19 November 2010, Kunming World Grand
Colour Printing Co., Ltd. ("Kunming World Grand”) is accredited as a High
and New Tech Enterprise. Pursuant to Article 28(2) of New CIT Law and
Article 93 of Implementation Rules of New CIT Law, Kunming World
Grand, being a High and New Tech Enterprise, was entitled to a reduced
corporate income tax rate of 15% for the years 2012 and 2013.

The relevant tax rates for the Company’s PRC subsidiaries before the tax
holiday range from 15 % to 25 %.

Further under the New CIT Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in the PRC or
which have an establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment
or a place of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at
the rate of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive
income such as dividend derived from sources within the PRC. As the
entire Group's foreign-invested enterprises are directly or indirectly
wholly or partial owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a
rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this withholding tax on
dividends according to Comprehensive Arrangement for the Avoidance
of Double Taxation on Income and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion between
PRC and Hong Kong, and Guoshihan (2009) No. 81.
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok B S 25 R i

According to the notice Cai Shui (2008) No.1 released by the Ministry

of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, distributions of the

pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign-invested enterprise to a foreign

investor in 2008 or after are exempt from withholding tax. Accordingly,

the retained profits at 31 December 2007 in the Group’s foreign-invested

enterprises’ books and accounts will not be subject to withholding tax

on dividend at 5% on future distributions.

A reconciliation between the income tax expenses and the product of

(2008)15% 38 40 -
FRzEmAIINEKEEES
ZRBENERRBANTENRIE - Fut -
REEZHINIRE % 2 &kt &Ik B FT3
RZZEZLFE+_A=+—H2KRHE

BAGRARRD KA E

N.FrEHREX (&)

R AR B BOED N B K B A 4R 2R A 2 B AR
IR ERER=ZZZN
Ik —ZEZ N\E R

piagil
B AN5% 2 TEHTLIA ©

PSR BB A S MR AER R KR 2T

profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows: ZEMRATE ¢
2013 2012
—=E—= —E—_4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Profit before tax T A A 715,660 692,787
Tax at applicable tax rate of 25% ZRiE AR 5% H KT IE 178,915 173,197
Tax effect of share of profit of associates IR E N RSNz g2 (10,381) (12,742)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBIMA 2 B2 (15,271) (2,025)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TGS 2 i & 154,309 131,099
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RIEREREZ5E 2
differences BEE 1,692 (2,157)
Tax effect of unused tax loss not recognised THERARBAHEEEZ
s 2 12,165 14,026
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not A Se R AR R TIE
previously recognised ER G2 (781) =
Tax effect of tax concession BMEEmZ HGETE (49,082) (119,231)
(Over)/under provision in prior year FFERE (BHBEE) TR (3,113) 311
Withholding tax TEHOREIE 1,426 52,739
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HEEMAEERLLE 2
operating in other jurisdictions Bt & 2 B P i AR 1S ]
MR & 6,251 3,467
Income tax expenses T8 2 276,130 238,684
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12.EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share of HK42.5 cents (2012: HK45.0 cents) is
calculated based on the Group's profit attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year of approximately HK$392,325,000 (2012:
HK$415,776,000) and the weighted average number of shares of
approximately 923,129,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year
(2012: 923,147,000 shares).

(b) No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did
not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares during the two
years ended 31 December 2013.

13.DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2013 were
approximately HK$84,930,000 being final dividend of HK9.2 cents
per share for year 2012 and approximately HK$81,237,000 being
interim dividend of HK8.8 cents per share for year 2013. The dividends
paid during the year ended 31 December 2012 were approximately
HK$99,700,000 being final dividend of HK10.8 cents per share for year
2011, approximately HK$81,237,000 being interim dividend of HK8.8
cents per share and approximately HK$996,999,000 being special
dividend of HK108 cents per share for year 2012. A final dividend of
HK8.2 cents per share in respect of 2013, amounted to approximately
HK$75,567,000 is proposed by the Board subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The proposed
final dividends are not recognised as liabilities at 31 December 2013.

12.8REF

(@) % HE A A F2585WL(ZF — =
F 4508 1) DEBEAFEZARR A
WA A G 2 & B & F 49392,325,000
BT (= T — = 4 : 415,776,000/
L) RFERBRITE B2 NEFH
% 21 #9923,129,0008% (= T — = F :
923,147,0008%) 5T & o

b) ARERARBE_ZT—=F+_5
=t RAIEMFALEEFAEEES
BB MAEZ5|SREERT

13.1 2

HE-FT—=F+=ZA=+—HLEFE
A X 2 & B & 4984,930,0007% 7t (Bl =
T——F 2 REBBREBER2EN) R4
81,237,000 7T (A= —=F 2H HRKE
AER8SEN) - HEZTE—=—FF+=A=
+—HIEFE AL 2R E &#199,700,000
BT (22— F 2 RHKREAERI08
L)~ #981,237,0008 7T (B =& — =4
HRR B R SR8 L) &iﬁ996999ooo?§7’t
(A= ——F %R EFR108H(L)

$§Lm/ﬁ§’¥ i—:if;?ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬂxﬁﬂx
8.2/l - &A% B £ R4 A75,567,0007 TC -
'rE/,\f%Hxib‘AﬁJ:Hx%{ﬂik/‘ﬁtbﬁ
BERARETERRAEN T —=F+

“RA=+—RZz&afE&-
2013 2012
—E-—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK8.8 cents EIR A H R B A8 878 (1L
(2012: HK8.8 cents) per share —T—F 881l 81,237 81,237
Special dividend: Nil FRIRE - & (ZT——%F -
(2012: HK108 cents) per share FHE10878(1L) - 996,999
Proposed final dividend of HK8.2 cents H Ik A AR B & AR 8 2 Il
(2012: HK9.2 cents) per share (ZZT——%F : 9.2/l 75,567 84,930
156,804 1,163,166
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Gk B AR B

14.9% - REKRE

Leasehold Plant and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BE HER BWAZ
BF NERE BE B E§ HERIR a3t

HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000

Thr i Thr Thr ThL Thr Thr
Cost HA
At 1 January 2012 R=E-—%-f-H 107491 18109 881,64 26,047 25370 4841 1063482
Additions e - 1,069 15,558 4177 209 155,928 179627
Transfers b - W7 20453 1336 230 (24736) =
Disposalsfwie off e /i = - (14929) (162) (141 - (16528)
Bichange differences EiER 1177 21 9916 35 7 2580 14558
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—%5+-A=t-H 108,668 2,146 912,626 30354 26,732 138613 1,241,139
Additions TE 2650 906 28091 2651 5491 0 72011
Trangfers % - 6,059 150,188 19 30 (156,29) -
Disposals/write off HE /B - - (33464) (169) (1653) - (35,286)
Exchange differences EHEE 3001 74 26816 908 747 2180 34366
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+ZA=1-H 114319 29805 1,084,257 35,763 31347 16,719 1312,230
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-F--£-A-8 00 9410 379959 15016 13807 - 440463
Charge for the year TEERE 5768 369 67728 3642 3077 - 8908
Disposals/write off HE /B - - (8643) (138) (1) - 9192)
Exchange differences EXER 317 149 4908 206 173 - 5753
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—%+-A=t-H 2835 1325 44395 18726 16,646 - 520932
Charge for the year REERE 6,048 4870 77767 393 3039 - 95,856
Disposals/write off HE /B - - (24070) (495) (1487) - (26,052)
Bxchange differences EiER 854 40 12834 551 47 - 15,109
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+-A=1-H 35,058 18545 510483 0714 18,845 - 605,845
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2013 W=F-=5+-A=1-A 79061 11280 573774 13,049 12502 16,719 706,385
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—E+-B=1-H 80312 8894 468,674 13628 10086 138613 72007

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC.

REBZBFIHANPE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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15.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15.F8HE L b8

2013 2012

—B-=F —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT T

At 1 January WN—H—H 23,062 23,539
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  TET & + #b 7018 2 # (745) (726)
Exchange differences ME X =%8 620 249
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 22,937 23,062
Current portion mENEL (755) (735)
Non-current portion IEmE D 22,182 22,327

The Group's prepaid land lease payments represent payments for land

use rights in the PRC under medium term leases.

AEBZBENHAE T RIEEZPHEE

FrA 2 B L i AR 2 K e

16.GOODWILL 16.HE

HK$'000

FHT
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——F—H—H 2,627,422
Exchange differences b W =28 28,710
At 31 December 2012 R-_E——F+_-_HA=+—H 2,656,132
Exchange differences EH =5 72,479
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-_A=+—H 2,728,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A W B R P R
16.GOODWILL (continued) 16.B8 (&
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, XBEHMRENRES RN IERS R
to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from BHRRERZEBEHNSREeELS
that business combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the W (BReEELESBMN]) EERABEERE
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows: Al - AEREESEET
2013 2012
—E—=F —F2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Printing of cigarette packages BIEGEER 2,727,140 2,654,700
Manufacturing of transfer paper and HERRNENERE
laser film 1,471 1,432
2,728,611 2,656,132
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from their value ReEABEMMAKESEHIZEFERE
in use. The key assumptions for the value in use determination are BEEE EEEABEZEERZIIBER
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross FIRE ERERAACBEEMNERE
margin and turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount X5 o AEEHARMERMS Y E KR
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the MEBEKRSEEEN 2 FERR2FME
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Budgeted gross I ATHTIR R AR ET TR X - BMEEH X
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on FEXHAURBERBESHARERAMBEER
market developments. EE
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent AEERUZHASRERAREELES
financial budgets approved by the Directors for the next five years with HELHRKAF 2 AV EIEE - Mk
the residual period using the growth rate of 5%. TEAM BB IRIG R RSpEH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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16.GOODWILL (continued)

16. 58 (&

The rates used to discount the forecast cash flows are as follows: RAERREARSRECLLENT ¢
2013 2012
—2—=F —FF
Printing of cigarette packages % 1% B 2 E) 9.64% 11.79%
Manufacturing of transfer paper and LR K 5 B IR B i
laser film 9.64% 11.79%
17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17.ABE QT 2R
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted investments in the PRC: RAE Lz IE ETRE
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 141,203 138,360
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2013 are as follows: RZE—=F+=A=+—8 ' ~x&EH
BARZHEMT -
Place of Particulars of Percentage of
incorporation/ registered interest held/
Name operation capital profit Sharing Principal activities
MR PSRz RF
£ B R EMEARFE BoEott FEEK
Nanjing Sanlong Packing Co., Ltd PRC US$2,100,000 48%/48% Printing of cigarette
("NJSL") packages
ER=EERGRAA ([FR=[E]) HE 2,100,000% 75 489%/48% BB
Qingdao AMVIG Shuncheng PRC RMB33,000,000 51%/51% Manufacturing of transfer
Packaging Co., Ltd ("“QDAMSC") paper and laser film
SERMEHEEAR AR X AR#33,000,0007T  51%/51% ER RN ENIREE

(TSR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Although the Group owned more than 50% in QDAMSC, QDAMSC
is treated as an associate because the Group is only able to exercise

significant influence on the financial and operating policies of QDAMSC.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for

using the equity method.

fok B S 25 R i

17.RBE QR 2B (&)

BEAKER S BIRHEABBS0%EE
BRRAEEER S SR M5 M E
BERBEEEATES  WESIEHADKR

R TR E AT

TRETRAEEAXDEMBEMEEIMNE L
PEAWMBERARNEE RAEDEA
&) °

2013 2012
—E—= —EF—_4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT AT
At 31 December: R+=—HA=+—8:

Carrying amount of interests R IREE 141,203 138,360

Year ended 31 December: BE+T-A=1+—HLEE:
Profit from continuing operations R ERHES & 515 2 5 A 41,523 50,960
Other comprehensive income H 2wk e 3,764 1,484
Total comprehensive income SENE=ARE 45,287 52,444

As at 31 December 2013, the bank and cash balances of the Group's
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to HK$72,638,000
(2012: HK$83,295,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

18.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sales financial assets represent a club membership in the
PRC.

As no quoted market prices in an active market are available, the
available-for-sale financial assets are carried at cost less any identified

impairment.

R-_ZTE—Z=F+-_FA=+—H  A&EER
PR ZEEE R RIAARBFENRITRE
&R 5B72,6380008 0 (ZF——F :
83,295,000/ 7) © AR H M AINEAZ
Bl SNDE B il AR Bl R 45 BB - S IE RS EE B
REFTHR

18 A HEESHERE
AR HESMAENNTE B -

HREEERTHRE WRAUHEES

B A B AR A AR AR AT A BR B AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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19.

154

LOAN RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

It is mainly loan receivables. On 13 June 2007, the Company adopted
an employees’ share award scheme (the “Scheme”) under which shares
(the "Awarded Shares") of the Company may be awarded to certain
employees of the Group (the “Selected Employees”) in accordance with
the terms and conditions imposed by the Board of the Company. The
Scheme is valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on
13 June 2007. Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, an administrator
has been appointed to administer the Scheme and hold the Awarded
Shares. On or after the vesting date, the Selected Employees shall be
entitled to sell in whole or in part of his/her Awarded Shares through the
administrator and receive the gain on the disposal of his/her Awarded
Shares, being the excess of sales proceeds over the acquisition costs
of the Awarded Shares purchased by the Company, together with the

related income attributable to the Awarded Shares disposed.

In June 2008, the Company made clarifications with the Selected
Employees on certain terms and operation mechanism of the Scheme.

[n summary:

(@) Neither the Company, the administrator nor the Selected Employees
shall have any voting rights to the Company’s shares purchased by

the administrator to the Scheme.

(b) All the beneficial interests and risks of the shares purchased under
the Scheme are designated to the Selected Employees upon the

purchase of the Company’s shares.

(c) The funds made available by the Company to the administrator
(the "Fund”) for purchases of Company’s shares in accordance with
the Scheme are advances made by the Company to the Selected

Employees.

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013
SEREHZRAL A BR A 7] AMVIG Holdings Limited

19.BENERREMEE

HIZREUER - R-ZTLFRAT
=R AREHRA—IAREE RO B
(T5t81)) : Bt RABARERARAFE
bR 2GR EGERARBEETES
(MEEES]) ZTht ([RBkH])) - &
HE_TELFNAT=ZBRBERRLE
Mo RETF - REAEHRY - EEALD
EZEEENERGAEBRD - NEE
Afigkz% BEERENEBEEALE
HE2RRED RBRM LW EER
B iy 2 Wz - BNEEMSRIABBAR
RARBERBEO cBEXRAZERE  ER
Pt 5 SRR AR A0 MBS Z ARRURA -

ST N\FAA AATAREEES
TR eS - BT S -

e
[l
B
A

i
T

aff
ok
=

@ ARF - BEEANEZEEHTES
AAEERAMBE 2 ARRRN ZE
Al 324 o

() RBEARRRAKRNE  RETERME

Bz Wiy 2 — Bzt o N A I 57 8
KERES o

© ARARRRBFEMBEARRRN
MAEEARTEzES ([E2]) &
AABAEERBRHE 2K -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19.LOAN RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

(continued)

After the aforementioned clarifications, the Company considered that
the Fund made by the Company to assist the Selected Employees
to purchase the Awarded Shares should be accounted for as loan
receivables from the Selected Employees. The loan receivables will be
repaid when the Awarded Shares are disposed of. Any gain or loss on
disposal of the Awarded Shares shall be accounted to or borne by the

Selected Employees.

During the year, the Group changed the estimated amortisation period
of prepayments from 10 years to 6 years. As a result of this change in
accounting estimates, the profit for the year decreased by approximately
HKS$47,014,000 in 2013 and will also increase by approximately
HK$11,754,000 for each of the following 4 years.

fok B S 25 R i

19. B ERREMEE (&)

REBLMEER  ARARRBR  AAF
RUNADEEZEERERBBRN  ESRE
FItFREIREREE BN - BIRE TR E
By & LR EE - HERERD 2 EM
WHNERERBRREREMAIMEER
BEALE

FRN - RSB G TE A FRIE (G 58 B
10 B R6F - BRI &I #F) -
ZE—=F 2FEm Mk #47,014,000%
7T MR BE 1 MU & & G 2 6 12 i I 35 hn
#911,754,00078 7T °

A

20.INVENTORIES 20.78
2013 2012
—ET—=£F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R 152,741 191,086
Work in progress yankl S 47,525 58,724
Finished goods RUAK oA 218,778 227,439
419,044 477,249

Because of the change in the market conditions of the Group's products
during the year, there was a decrease in the net realisable value of
inventories. As a result, no reversal was made for allowance made in

prior years against the inventories (2012: HK$814,000).

HRAFEASBERNMBBERE LS
bt FEMATEIRFERMD - Bt - #E
BORNBEFERGEEEHNEE (ZF—
— £ 1 814,000/ 7T) °
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21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The general credit terms of the Group granted to its trade customers
range from one month to three months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the senior management. An aging analysis of trade

receivables, based on the invoice date, net of allowances, is as follows:

21.ES R HMEWKRRIE

AEBETHESIEF ZRIRE—RNF
—E=fAA8 - AEBBAOFHEBRRESR
BEEEREFIA FREEEEHNELTHAY
iR o BHRIGIR (RBRE B B RINRE

) ZIREDHTAR

2013 2012

—F-= —F=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHExT FHT

Current to 30 days BNHAZE30H 321,319 489,941
31 to 90 days 31£90H 108,951 220,410
Over 90 days BiEo0H 23,761 14,528
Trade receivables =) & e 454,031 724,879
Bills receivables e 101,224 69,586
Other receivables — an associate H{th fEU XIE — — B2 A a) 54,798 56,150
Other receivables — others E b sRIE — HA 12,835 11,500
622,888 862,115
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21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

An analysis of allowance for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables is

Gk B AR B

21. B 5 R EMEYRIE (&)

5T AT IR [ B 5 8 YR IR 2 B 0 AT 4

as follows: T

HK$'000

FAT
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 34
Charge for the year FEZH 87
Exchange differences HEHZ5 1
At 31 December 2012 R-TE——F+-_H=+—H 122
Reversal for the year FERE (52)
Exchange differences PEH Z% 3
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-"A=+—H 73

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
HK$23,761,000 (2012: HK$14,528,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables

is as follows:

R—_E—ZF+-_A=Z+—H8" 4
23,761,000/8 7t (=& — Z4F : 14,528,000
7T) 2B S EWFIEE BB RRE - 2%
RIEHEETRIIWEBRCHEZBYEP
Bl - ZEEFEMFIBZIRROITAT ¢

2013 2012
—E2-= —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Up to 6 months =%~ 8 A 7,345 6,781
Over 6 months i@~ E A 16,416 7,747
23,761 14,528
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R B R M R

22.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 2. EEBARTERRRBITRRE
CASH BALANCES REER
Bank deposits of approximately HK$1,751,064,000 (2012: HK$972,838,000) #]1,751,064,0008 T (= T — = F:
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0% to 5.2% (2012: 0.5% to 4.5%) 972,838,000 JT) Z R 17 17 3K & 1 F0%
thus exposing the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Bank deposits B52% (= F — = F 1 05%F45%) Z

of approximately HK$523,855,000 (2012: HK$288,941,000) carry floating
interest rates thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 31).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances is
an amount of approximately HK$1,500,819,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$1,080,883,000) denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

23.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of invoices, is as

follows:

EMEFE  MASEEE A FERNE
[B B o #9523,855,0008 7T (Z & — = -
288,941,000/ 7T ) 2 SRITFRURIZ B FI=F
B WASEEHRSTRMNERR - A&
EzEERRTERREERTRITZIF
F o EAR TASERITEE 2HEHF (T
F£31) ©

FIABEBRITEFERRRITEBE EH 2
RBEBRE-—"BR-_Z—=F+=-A=+
— B #91,500,819,000% 7T (= & — = £ :
1,080,883,000/ 7T) 2 A R¥EFRIE + HZK
BEERFE - ARBHIBAINEESF
Bl SNDE B il 45 Bl R 45 BB - S IE RS EE B
REFTHR

23. EZ R HAEARKIE

BHRNFIE (REZEH) ZIRERS T
T

2013 2012

—B-=F —F=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHAT

Current to 30 days BNHAZE30H 258,067 302,935
31 to 90 days 3152908 195,762 257,400
Over 90 days #B3E90 H 26,600 28,431
Trade payables B S RIE 480,429 588,766
Bills payables — secured eSS Sk % = 15,824
Other payables H b e 3E 458,951 387,248
939,380 991,838
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i A S R i RE
/= i
24.BANK BORROWINGS 24 8RITER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Bank loans — unsecured IRTTE R — SR 1,977,508 1,547,599
The loans are repayable as follows: EREIBAEAT ¢
On demand or within one year BRERS N —FR 437,384 =
In the second year F_F 741,693 425312
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FFERF 798,431 1,122,287
1,977,508 1,547,599
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : + =18 A AF|EAE R FIE
months (shown under current (RrgaBEEe5IR)
liabilities) (437,384) -
Amount due for settlement after + AR & FEEZEIE
12 months 1,540,124 1,547,599
The carrying amounts of the Group's loans are denominated in HKS. AEEEBRZIREEASITAE -
The effective interest rate at 31 December was as follows: R+ZA=+—HBZ2EEFNEHERNT :
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E——F
Bank loans RITER 3.59% 3.83%
Bank loans are arranged at floating rates thus exposing the Group to FERITERDRFHMNERER  WAE
cash flow interest rate risk. EEmHEESRFRER -
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25.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group.

25 RN IEEE
TR AREEFRERY EEFEAE -

Revaluation
of property
plant and Withholding
equipment tax Total
BV BE
K& RHHIE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
At 1 January 2012 R—ZT——F—H—H 16,784 51,499 68,283
Payment INE:N - (38,969) (38,969)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (T AIB%),/ BiEaikk (2,001) 52,739 50,738
Exchange differences MEH Z=¥E 158 737 895
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F+—A#
=—1E 14,941 66,006 80,947
Payment (BN - (62,406) (62,406)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (FTAIBE),/ BE&=NR (2,789) 1,426 (1.363)
Exchange differences PEH =28 371 990 1,361
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=%F+—"A#
=+—H 12,523 6,016 18,539

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$50,084,000 (2012: HKSNil) have not been recognised in respect
of the temporary differences associated with undistributed profits of
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries
and it has been determined that these undistributed profits will not be

distributed in the foreseeable future.
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SR A R P
26.SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 26. R AR EFR G
Share capital (i) KA
Number of shares Amount
BHEE X
‘000 HKS$'000
T FAT
Authorised: EFE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEIBITZ EBER
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 N-ZT——F
¢M—ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 2,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EZETRHE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FIRAEE.017E T 2 & i)
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 R-E——FER_FE—=4F
+=-—A=+—H 923,147 9,231

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt

and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,

redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, minority interests, retained
earnings and other reserves) other than debit amounts recognised

in equity.

AEEERES Z BRAREAEE
BEZSEREEERE 2N X
FRBCER R P& 8 A
REHR -

AEERFRBRZLEAARERES
B o AE BT B MR E & N A RE
BEZEBEHBEREEARBRAE
HAEE - BEFKFRBREARE - K
SETRERABRARRKS Z RS - #
TR BEEG  E5HE - BE
RABHRHEEENBIRIETS -

AEEREBEEELHEEAR L RE
REN - BRALL XTI AMERFERER A
RARBEARGFE - EHFE[BERK
BARERBASEFEBYTE KRHEE
AEeFEEEmER Y (BRA - RO
HE - LBREER REBMNEE
) - RS R 2 B & 8RR
p =
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26.SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (continued)
(i) Share capital (continued)

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged since
2007, was to maintain a capital structure with a lowest weighted
average cost of capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital at 31 December
2013 and at 31 December 2012 were (6.0%) and 6.6%, respectively.

26. RARERFRD (&)

(i)

R (&)
R-E—=F AEEZRE (B=-Z
ZHFER—EARE)  DHHEF—EER

INHE T 25 B AR R R B AR 7K S 2 BN A
B-R-_ZTE—=F+=-A=+—8K
—E——F+-A=t+—RAzEKHE
B EEE AR T 5 Rl £3(6.0%) £26.6% ©

2013 2012

—ET—=£F —E——F

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

FExT FHT

Total borrowings BIER 1,977,508 1,547,599
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (2,269,764) (1,247,448)
Net debt ERFRE (292,256) 300,151
Total equity B 4,170,641 3,830,440
Add: debit amounts recognised in equity il : PMERFERZ G S5E 735,384 731,043
Adjusted capital 4R R R IR 4,906,025 4,561,483
Debt-to-adjusted capital ERSEAE B E AR b R (6.0%) 6.6%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have
a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a
report from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31
December 2013, 52.1% (2012: 52.1%) of the shares were in public
hands.
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26.SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (continued)  26. AR EFZRG (&)

(ii) Treasury shares (iy EERHD
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——4F
Number of Treasury Number of Treasury
shares shares shares shares
R EE B iR 15 SvaE S eE] EFRR G5
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HKS$'000
T FERT & FAT
At 1 January K—H—H - - - -
Shares repurchased to be 1 7 85 B9 B [B] AR 1
cancelled 1,176 4,341 - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 1,176 4,341 = -
During December 2013, the Company repurchased 1,176,000 shares MRZZ—Z=F+_H AREIRHRZ
on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately FiT A48 X (B 494,341,000/ 7T (BIER S
HK$4,341,000 (including transaction costs) which were subsequently FAN) BE[E11,176,0000% I8 10 - 5% 17D
cancelled on 28 January 2014. BERMN =T —MFE— A=+ /\HziH -
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27.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

27. DA 2 B BAR R B &R

COMPANY
2013 2012
—B—=£ —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment M R MR 276 112
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 &E 1 1
Loan receivables JEWE X 240,488 245,273
Due from subsidiaries FEUR KB A R IA 4,922,516 4,478,583
Other receivables E b e W 5k 18 2 -
Bank and cash balances R1T RIS R 13,875 6,070
Other current assets Efme&E 12,004 13,415
Bank borrowings AT R (1,977,508) (1,547,599)
Other current liabilities HimehaEd (12,000) (12,993)
NET ASSETS EEFRE 3,199,654 3,182,862
Share capital ¥ 9,231 9,231
Reserves & 3,190,423 3,173,631
TOTAL EQUITY fERBE 3,199,654 3,182,862
28.RESERVES 28.1i#
(a) Group (@) A&EH

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are AREBZHFELBREBEEIHHNL
EHEEREMEENERRIGE ER

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in BE)x o

presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

equity.
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G T B R R B R
28.RESERVES (continued) 28.f# % (&)
(b) Company (b) &"AF]
Employee
share-based
Share Treasury ~ compensation Other Retained
premium shares reserve reserves profits Total
NRHZ A2
REEE EERG EEMERE Rftitte REER &5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TAL TiEn T TR
At 1 January 2012 W-Z-—£-F-AH 2485151 = 21,604 466,615 113,955 3,087,325
Total comprehensive income AEERENRES
for the year - - - 26,484 1,208,291 1,234,775
Dividend paid for 2011 (Note 13) xfI=B——FRE (z13) - - - - (99,700) (99,700)
Dividends paid for 2012 (Note 13) TRZF-FRE (HzF3) - - - - (1,078,236) (1,078,236)
Employee share-based WRHZ 2 &S
compensation benefits (Note 29) e R - - 29467 - - 29467
Changes in equity for the year AEERGED o - 29467 26,484 30355 86,306
At 31 December 2012 RZE-=%+-A=1-H 2485151 - 51071 493,099 144310 3173631
Total comprehensive income rEERANGER
for the year - - - 86,477 100,823 187,300
Dividend paid for 2012 (Note 13) IHZE-—ERE (fF3) - - - - (84930) (84930)
Dividend paid for 2013 (Note 13) INZF-=FRE (W) - - - - (81,237) (81,237)
Purchase of treasury shares (Note 26) BEERRLH (Mihe) = (4341) - - - (4341)
Changes in equity for the year TEEERZY - (4:341) - 86,477 (65,344) 16,792
RZE-=%12A
At 31 December 2013 =t+-A 2485151 (4341) 51071 579576 78966 3190423
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28.RESERVES (continued)

166

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

(i

(iv

=

-

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
the share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group comprises (a) the amount
that arose as a result of the reorganisation implemented and
represented the difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore; and
(b) the excess of the fair value of consideration payable for
the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary over the

decrease in the carrying value of the non-controlling interests.

Employee share-based compensation reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors and employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for employee share-based compensation benefits in Note 3(k)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in

Note 3(d) (iii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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(iii)
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28.RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the Group’s share of
associate’s post-acquisition movements in revaluation reserve
and is dealt in accordance with accounting policy in Note 3(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

=

(vi) Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable, are
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the

PRC.

29.EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

BENEFITS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, directors, substantial
shareholders of each member, associates of directors or substantial
shareholders and trustees of any trust pre-approved by the Board of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 10 March 2004 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The options will only be vested to the grantees over a period of four
years (i.e. one-fourth on or after 29 July 2012, one-fourth on or after
29 July 2013, one-fourth on or after 29 July 2014 and one-fourth on or
after 29 July 2015) upon fulfillment of certain annual key performance

indicators set and/or to be set by the Board.

Options are lapsed if the employees leave the Group.

Gk B AR B

28.1% % (2)

() EBZMEREW (&)
(v) EfbfF#ERE

BEbREEARERGEE AR
BRELFHEED  XWIRGEEY
BRI QMR EFTRREE

(vi) AEfRE
TADIKZ AR TIRA LB
oh B A AR BB AR R
ERB R AR IR -

29. AR X 2 EEMEER

LUR A E 1V B IR e T &

ARABETABRETE ([518)) - §
ERHAEEEEKRELER 26 ER
SEERTHBRER - REBRSEER
BERERAZEBRNFRES S -
ITEMRF BFEZHBAREIERRRA
RAIRARFMBRR 2 EEG EATHE
ZEFANZEA - FECR_TTEF=
AT BAER RIESTHRERER - B
BRHESEREZBAEI0F -

BRREEANERER (MM 2 —RZ
T——_FtAZtThBHZETE MH
Z—RZIE—=F+tAZt+NBHZE&T
B Woz—R-_E—MNELA-+NHB
I BITEAROD 2 —R T —hF+
AZ+NA®z%&TE) BTEBRESS
BRER /" SBEREZETEEEZER
IR Z AN o

il 8 B ANEERER - HBRERSRK -
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29.EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 29.

BENEFITS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

ARt zEEM SRR

(#&

LIRSS IBIREE (&)

FAEARITEZBREFBNT

2013 2012

—g2—= —_=F=—=
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
I g It 15
BREHE TEE  ERERE TEE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 January n—RA—H 85,016,988 3.64* 90,000,000 4.72
Lapsed during the year RERKR (21,494,943) 3.64 (4,983,012) 472
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 63,522,045 3.64 85016988 472
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RAERA] F17{H 19,672,045 3.64 19,241,988 472

*

The exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the repricing of share
options during the year.

The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.58 years (2012: 8.58
years) and the exercise price is HK$3.64 (2012: HK$4.72).

At the annual general meeting held on 13 June 2013, the shareholders
have approved to reduce the subscription price of share options granted
from HK$4.72 per share to HK$3.64 per share.

At the date of repricing of share options, the estimated incremental fair
values of the options are HK$11,497,000.
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A W B R P R
29.EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 2. R 2 BEEMEEF
BENEFITS (continued) (&
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) LR AR B REST B (&)
These incremental fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes ZEANTEESNERABAR —FRETE
Model. The inputs into the model are as follows: NETE o LB AREBR AT ¢
Repricing date 13 June 2013
ENEEBRH —E-=%5xHAT+=H
Option value — HK$ EREEE — BT 0.4486 — 0.5427
Weighted average share price — HKS INREFHRE — BT 2871
Weighted average exercise price — HKS IHEFHITERE — BT 3.64
Expected volatility LN 4557% — 47.71%
Expected life T8 HA 4 B 36-5.14F
Risk free rate 42 2\ B 1) == 0.55% — 0.85%
Expected dividend yield TR AR B 6.27%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility T8 B3R 08 T AR R 5t AR A B AR (B 7 B AR
of the Company'’s share price over the previous year before the date of BN EEHH A AR FEZEL KIRE
repricing of share options. The expected life used in the model has been FeaZBXFERZBFFHEREAEER
adjusted, based on the Group's best estimate, for the effects of early ZEREME SEREREARETERE
exercise behaviour of the option holders. RRRERTIE R I e 2K
30.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.AEALR S
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, B EGEEMEREREMEDFAEEE
the Group had the following material related party transactions during N REBRARFEELEITIUATEABE
the year: ALRG :
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Purchases from associates BN 196,268 245,323
Note:  The purchases from associates were made under normal commercial MizE : B D REE BT R ERRE
terms. 1T °
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30.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the following balances with related

parties were included in:

30.BEAELRSG (&

R|BEMRERE - THBEAL &R
SN

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T T
Trade and other receivables: B 5 R H A R GRIE

Associates iR/ 54,798 59,093

Trade and other payables: B 5 I A FE A 50E
An associate —MHEtE A a 31,512 49,562

The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest free. An
amount of approximately HKSNil (2012: HKS$2,944,000) is repayable
within 90 days and the remaining balance has no fixed term of

repayment.

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest free and has no

fixed term of repayment.

31.BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, banking facilities of the Group are
mainly secured by the charge over certain bank deposits (Note 22) and

corporate guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries.

— T —=FF R Annual Report 2013
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32.COMMITMENTS 3274
As at 31 December 2013 the Group had the following commitments: RZT—=F+=ZA=+—8 ' ~"§EEZ
AT
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) KEHEHRIE
The Group leases certain of its office and factory premises under AEBERBESCEHELHARE T
operating lease arrangements. The original lease terms for the office NERBENE - EEPRZERKE
and factory premises range from one year to ten years. MEZIRFTAANF—ZE+5F -
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BEDIHELCEHERT T ZARK
operating leases are as follows: XEHSEEHOT
2013 2012
=k A= —E——4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year —FR 25,156 20,779
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFAT (BREEERT) 67,419 41,995
After five years AFE 36,419 4,056
128,994 66,830
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAFENE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for: [EHEEES 4
Acquisition of property, plant and BEWE  BELERE
equipment 42,986 19,688
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33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2012: Nil).

34.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

- Printing of cigarette packages

- Manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products. They are managed separately because each business

requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include corporate administrative
expenses. Segment assets do not include goodwill, loan receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, prepayments and deposits and other
receivables for general administrative use. Segment liabilities do not

include other payables and accruals for general administrative use.
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A W B R P R
5 \ pr-~BVIN ==
34.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3.0 HER (&
Information about reportable segment profit, assets and liabilities: B 2/OF 2684 EBERBEBEZE
Manufacturing  Manufacturing
Printing of Printing of of transfer of transfer
cigarette Cigarette paper and paper and
packages packages laser film [aser film Total Total
BBER BEER
BEALOR  SEREDR EARRE EEIERE ) TE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —F--f —E-=F 3 —E-=F 3
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thz TEL TEn THL T THL
Year ended 31 December BET-A=t-HLEE
Revenue from exteral customers R ESMIZRP 2 Iz 3,716,141 3,557,164 46,236 38953 3,762,377 359,117
Segment profit AE R 575,880 690310 9,279 12447 585,159 702,757
Interest income HMEBA 21,376 21,904 118 135 21,494 22,039
Depreciation and amortisation 7% & 8 (91,411) (80,127) (920) (830) (92,331) (80,957)
Share of profit of associates g NG| 35,067 40,866 6,456 10,094 41,523 50,960
Income tax expenses FERAX (274,002) (185,216) (601) (463) (274,603) (185,679)
Additions to segment REDDIERDEE
non-current assets 69,683 178,859 a7 653 70,154 179,512
As at 31 December R+=A=1+-H
Segment assets DHEE 3,248,040 3,125,075 74,484 63,770 3,322,524 3,188,845
Segment labilities PHER (972,631) (977,480) (1,353) (1,734) (973,984) (979.214)
Interests in assoclates REE R B 102,526 107,078 38,677 31,282 141,203 138,360
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34.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities: EHEAERNHBriEn  EERBEZY
s :

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments Al 2R D e AR 585,159 702,757
Other profit or loss Hih Bz (145,629) (248,654)
Consolidated profit for the year REZLRE A 439,530 454,103

Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments A2HHHBEE 3,322,524 3,188,845
Goodwill P 2,728,611 2,656,132
Loan receivables and other assets U E R & HAth & 240,488 245273
Available-for-sale financial assets tHE S EE 1,766 1,719
Other assets Hitn&EE 917,979 400,862
Consolidated total assets LARREE 7,211,368 6,492,831

Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable segments AIZRDEREE (973,984) (979,214)
Other liabilities HEiafE (2,066,743) (1,683,177)
Consolidated total liabilities rEBEAaE (3,040,727) (2,662,391)
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34.SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information:

Over 90% of the Group's revenue and assets are derived from customers
and operations based in the PRC and accordingly, no further analysis of

the Group's geographical information is disclosed.

fok B S 25 R i

34.0EER (42)
o R
AEMBoNI R EERANANEY R

FRER AUt EE-FPREAEELZ
@ ER A o

Revenue from major customers: REERFSZWE
2013 2012
=B =% —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHExT

Printing of cigarette packages &8 8 5 R

Customer A BEPH 1,537,997 1,552,894
Customer B BEZ 651,607 623,198
Customer C ZER 570,851 496,799
Customer D BET 423,175 276,521
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35.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 5. XTEMBE LT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RZT—=F+ZA=+—HxZHBEQ
follows: AIFIBAT
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation/ paid-up share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
BiaRa#ksz  BAEIEIL
BERTRAZRE Direct Indirect
A% EMRY EMREELYE FHER HE BE  FEER
AMVIG Group Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Ordinary HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
BREEBRAA EERIES LR 00087 100% - REER
([RBELES])
AMVIG Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6,060,100 = 100% Investment holding
BRI EBRAT BB E1AR6,060,100 7T - 100% HREZR
Beijing Leigh-Mardon Pacific PRC Registered capital = 83% Printing of cigarette
Packaging Co, Ltd. USD13,000,000 packages
(“Beijing LMPP") (Note a)
ERBEHANTFEREERAA e A& 413,000,000 7 - 83% #EEEER

(MR B52]) (HiEa)

Bellgate International Limited BVI Ordinary HK$509,040,001 - 100% Investment holding

Bellgate International Limited EBRAES T A% 509,040,001 78 7T = 100% 1&BEER

Charm Profit Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100% Investment holding

BREEARAR BB EERIBT - 100% REZK

Dongguan KWG Colour Printing PRC Registered capital = 100% Printing of cigarette
Co, Ltd ('DG KWG")* (Note b) HK$40,000,000 packages
SERTHBRAR HE FHE 840,000,007 7 - 100% /@R

(TR=ER]) * (Ftiko)

Famous Plus Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100% Investment holding
HREEERAR B TR 1008 T - 100% HEER
Glory Express International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
tREBIR AR A Bk TBRET - 100% HEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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IL.FENBAT (2)

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid-up share capital/

Percentage of ownership

Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
EhRAES  BREIEL
ERTRBZRE Direct Indirect
8 EMAY FMREELY FTMEX B Gk TEEH
Hangzhou Weicheng Printing PRC Registered capital - 100% Printing of cigarette
Co,, Ltd ("HZ Weicheng") (Note c) USD10,000,000 packages
mMEKEIRIBRAR HE A& 710,000,000 7T - 100% BEBEHR
(T ERx J) (Biakc)
Kunming World Grand (Note d) PRC Registered capital - 100% Printing of cigarette
USD7,500,000 packages
EHER (ffztd) hE & 77,500,000% 7T - 100% %@ %ENR
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 5G$85,495,870 - 100% Investment holding
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. %713 37 1%85,495,870 - 100% HEER
AT
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 = 100% Investment holding
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited EBRAES LRRIET - 100% HEZEK
Qingdao Leigh-Mardon Packaging PRC Registered capital = 60% Printing of cigarette
Co,, Ltd (“Qingdao LMPP") (Note e) UsD15,515,000 packages
EEREHBEERAA hE & A15,515,000% 7T - 60% &1E R
([E&5REH]) (Fizke)
World Grand Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
BREEERAR BE i@k 15,000,000% 7T - 100% REZR
Xian Great Sky Laser Hologram PRC Registered capital - 51% Manufacturing of laser
Co,, Ltd ("Xian Hologram'")* RMB7,140,000 film
(Note f)
BRAXRKEEERAR HE TMERARE - 51% SEETRRGE
(TEZAK]) * (HfzE) 7,140,0007C
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35.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31

Beijing LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 50 years commencing from 12 May 1995.

DG KWG is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period of 25
years commencing from 15 February 2007.

HZ Weicheng is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period
of 30 years commencing from 30 March 1996.

Kunming World Grand is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 7 March 2002.

Qingdao LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 30 years commencing from 19 May 1993.

Xian Hologram is a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 10 years commencing from 11 November 2004.

The English names of these companies represents management's best efforts

at translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English names
have been registered.

December 2013, the bank and cash balances of the

Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$1,500,819,000 (2012: HK$1,080,883,000). Conversion of RMB into

foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control

Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of

Foreign Exchange Regulations.

36.APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014.
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# Summary of Financial Information
B 5 B R 2

The following is a summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group prepared on the bases set out in Note below:

NTAAEEZEZEREERAGBRE - Jhik

T XXM AT B RS

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f ZT—=f Z—T——% ZIZE-TF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTAT THAT FHT TAT
RESULTS £
Turnover ]
Printing of cigarette packages B 1R R 3,716,141 3,557,164 3,333,193 2,572,372 2,830,383
Manufacturing of transfer paper and BB RiESE
laser film gl 46,236 38,953 36,808 78,789 144,802
3,762,377 3,596,117 3,370,001 2,651,161 2,975,185
Profit before share of profit RETHE(LE & AR
of associates i llznpeiag il 674,137 641,827 763,568 691,965 607,239
Share of profit of associates FEEEEE A BR T 41,523 50,960 60,788 85,420 80,608
Profit before tax 4 A Al 715,660 692,787 824,356 777,385 687,847
Income tax expenses FTsfiAx (276,130) (238,684) (242,906) (176,632) (133,010)
Profit for the year REEZ )7 439,530 454,103 581,450 600,753 554,837
Attributable to: A& Ml -
Owners of the Company RAEEE A 392,325 415,776 547,823 570,914 365,119
Non-controlling interests FEPE I A 47,205 38,327 33,627 29,839 189,718
439,530 454,103 581,450 600,753 554,837
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R
As at 31 December
W+=A=t+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—EB-=f CZT-f ZT——% ZIZE-TF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET FHET FHTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets FERBDEE 3,855,786 3,845,130 3,813,659 3,770,843 3,702,686
Current assets MEEE 3,355,582 2,647,701 2,747,912 2,213,283 4,261,637
Current liabilities mEaE (1,482,064) (1,033,845) (1,178,941) (1,090,629) (1,417,846)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (1,558,663) (1,628,546) (837,543) (875,382) (760,815)
Total equity B 4,170,641 3,830,440 4,545,087 4,018,115 5,785,662
Attributable to: AT & F L :
Owners of the Company KAREE A 3,954,749 3,629,787 4,354,253 3,838,887 5,623,499
Non-controlling interests FE4R | R 2 215,892 200,653 190,834 179,228 162,163
4,170,641 3,830,440 4,545,087 4,018,115 5,785,662
Note: Amounts disclosed in the summary of financial information for prior years were W MEERBEZEARBE 2 BEFECRBIREES
extracted from the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2012. BHE_Z——F+_RA=1T—RHIEFEZEFR -
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